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MISSION

To be a modern and trustworthy
deposit protection agency that
promotes public confidence in
the financial system.

• To provide protection for the deposit of money
in financial institutions
• To enhance confidence and stability in the
financial institution system
• To manage the financial institution subject
to control and to liquidate the financial
institution whose license is revoked

CORE VALUES

T

I

S
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TRUSTWORTHINESS

INTEGRITY

SYNERGY

SOCIAL MIND

Fu l f i l l o u r d u t i e s
responsibly and
professionally to create
confidence and trust
among stakeholders

Complete our mission
with honesty, ethics,
equality, transparency,
and accountability

Adhere to the concept
of unity borne from
diversity by collaborating
and coordinating in an
enthusiastic manner
to achieve results far
beyond expectations
and goals

Emphasize and be
mindful of social
impacts for the benefit
of the public and
society

WHO IS
DPA?
Getting to Know the Deposit Protection Agency

35

A total of

3

Formally established under the
Deposit Protection Agency Act
B.E. 2551 (2008).

The Current Coverage Limit

15
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Million
Baht

11 2008

Began operating on

August

Pr o vi d e p r ot e ct i o n fo r
deposits at financial
institutions covered by DPA
2 Liquidate financial institutions
that have ceased operations.
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1

Million
Baht

11 Aug 20
onwards.

Address: SJ Infinite I Business
Complex, 25 - 27th Fl., 349 Vibhavadi
Rangsit Road, Chompol, Chatuchak,
Bangkok 10900

DPA has 2 important duties:
1

Million
Baht

Facebook
@DPAThailand

YouTube
DPA Channel

Telephone No.
0 2272 0300

Call Center

1158
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The Deposit Protection Agency
(DPA) is a government organization
under the supervision of the
Minister of Finance.

financial institutions are
covered by DPA and they
comprise commercial banks,
finance companies, and
credit foncier companies.

Operate as one of the
Financial Safety Net
members together with
the Bank of Thailand and
the Ministry of Finance
to enhance financial
institution system
confidence and stability
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The Board of Directors defined
a strategic direction for digital
transformation (Digital DPA)
through its 4-year corporate
strategy (2018 - 2021) to strive
in a technology-driven society
promoting confidence among
the public and relevant parties
that the DPA will continue
to look after its stakeholders
in the most responsive and
transparent manner.
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MESSAGE
FROM
THE CHAIRMAN
complying with best practices based on international
standards. These changes ultimately serve to enhance
confidence and stability in the financial institution
system.
In addition, the Board of Directors defined a
strategic direction for transforming the organization
into a digital one (Digital DPA) through its 4-year
corporate strategy (2018 - 2021). The strategic road map
was a result of taking into account multiple factors
ranging from risks, the financial environment, and
new financial products all the way to the landscape
of new technologies and innovation. To support this
initiative, the Board of Directors appointed the Digital
Organization Strategy Steering Sub-Committee to
provide advice and direction on how to best implement
key modern technologies and innovations to improve
the DPA’s operational efficiency. These developments
should continue to promote confidence among the
public and relevant parties that the DPA will continue
to look after its stakeholders in the most responsive
and transparent manner.
Overall, the DPA was successful in meeting its
targets for the year through its capacity as one of
the financial safety-net pillars and jointly preserving
stability for the sustainable growth of the Thai economy
and financial institution system. On behalf of the Board
of Directors, I would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to the Ministry of Finance, Bank of Thailand, and
financial institutions for their continued confidence,
trust, and support in the DPA.

(Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana)
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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In 2017, the Thai economy expanded by 3.9% as a
result of improvements in exports and tourism, private
sector investments, and ongoing public sector stimulus.
From the perspective of the Thai financial institution
system, Thai financial institutions faced their toughest
challenges thus far with the rapid changes in technology
as well as financial consumer behavior, requiring them
to revamp their organizational strategy. As of the end
of 2017, the entire financial institution system had
a net profit of 187.64 billion baht – a decrease of 5.96%
from the previous year – due to an increase in loan
loss provision levels and preparations for complying
with IFRS 9 accounting standards. Operating profit for
the financial institution system amounted to 394.61
billion baht – an increase of 2.82% from the previous
year. Furthermore, the capital adequacy ratio (BIS
Ratio) of the financial institution system was 18.19.
This was higher than the requirement of 9.75% set by
the Bank of Thailand, a level determined by taking the
minimum capital adequacy ratio of 8.5% and adding
a conservation buffer to absorb severe financial losses
in crisis situations.
In terms of deposit insurance, the deposit
insurance legislation – the Deposit Protection Agency
Act, B.E. 2551 (2008) – was amended via the Deposit
Protection Agency Act, B.E. 2560 (2017) and came into
force on 13 December 2017. The revisions aimed at
increasing depositor convenience by streamlining the
depositor reimbursement process, improving depositor
protection through clear and concise powers, and
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THE PRESIDENT
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2017 was a challenging year for the DPA amidst the
backdrop of rapidly evolving technologies that impacted both
business and financial sectors. Regardless, the DPA was able
to realize its goals among several key areas in its efforts to
successfully achieve its mission of protecting deposits while
adhering to international standards. These accomplishments
will serve to enhance public confidence in the nation’s financial
institution system.
One of the crucial steps taken in the past year to improve
the deposit insurance law and benefits for depositors was the
amendment of the Deposit Protection Agency Act, B.E. 2551
(2008). To comply with international standards, the procedures
for reimbursing depositors were revised, resulting in a shorter
duration, less complex process, and enhanced depositor
convenience. Depositors will now receive their insured deposits
within 30 days from the date that a financial institution is
permanently closed without the need to file any reimbursement
claims. This contrasts from the original procedure of depositors
having to wait for an announcement from the DPA about how
and where to file reimbursement claims before they could
proceed to do so – which could have taken up to a maximum of
160 days before they would receive their insured deposits.
Moreover, certain powers granted to the DPA for achieving its
mandate were given more clarity to improve operational
efficiency. These amendments came into force on 13 December
2017, and ultimately serve to promote public confidence,
mitigate panic in the event of a financial institution crisis, and
reinforce stability in the financial institution system.
Another key initiative undertaken by the DPA was to
transform into a digital organization (Digital DPA) in line with
“Thailand 4.0”, the Thai government’s policy of transforming and
driving the country into a new stable, prosperous, and sustainable
era by utilizing innovative technologies. On this front, the DPA
began implementing key technologies into its operations in
the following areas:
1. Internal process – the DPA enhanced the efficiency of its
internal operations by incorporating new technologies into
different areas. One such area was the introduction of an
e-meeting system, which reduced unnecessary or redundant
procedures and freed up resources to be used elsewhere.

Another vital area was improving the DPA’s IT infrastructure.
The past year saw the DPA create guidelines for cyber security
issues and identifying risks and vulnerabilities in the IT
architecture susceptible to cyber attacks and threats. This
assessment received approval from the Electronic Transactions
Commission, the Ministry of Digital Economy and Society.
2. Depositor reimbursement process – as the DPA’s main
mission, the depositor reimbursement process was enhanced
via IT systems, particularly the integration and linkage of IT
systems between the DPA and its agent bank for use in depositor
reimbursement. In addition, depositor data was successfully
tested and verified for all 35 financial institution members.
Nevertheless, the DPA will continue to develop other aspects
of the deposit reimbursement process based on the recently
amended deposit insurance legislation.
In terms of corporate communications, the DPA continued
to improve awareness and promote knowledge and understanding about the deposit insurance scheme. Information
was provided through both traditional channels – seminars,
television commercials, radio advertisements, print media, and
holding public events all over the country – and social media
such as Facebook and YouTube. The inclusion of social media
as a platform for corporate communications signifies the shifts
in demographic trends and lifestyles of the newer generation.
The significant achievements and changes outlined above
also highlight the importance of personnel. As the main
factor in driving an organization, the DPA continued to develop
personnel capacity, especially in the areas and skills needed
to support its transformation. At the same time, the working
environment was adapted in response to the changing needs
of its staff. Improvements in these areas will result not only in
better operational efficiency but also increased engagement
and relationship with the organization.
Finally, I would like to extend my sincerest gratitude to
the Board of Directors, Sub-Committees, and all relevant
organizations for their continued cooperation and support.
I would also like to express my appreciation to the DPA’s
management and staff for their focus and dedication in
contributing to the stability of the Thai economy and financial
institution system.

(Mr. Satorn Topothai)
President of the Deposit Protection Agency
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One of the crucial steps taken to
increase efficiency of the deposit
protection system and improve
the benefits of depositors was
the amendment of the Deposit
Protection Agency Act, B.E. 2551
(2008), effective as of 13 December
2017. Depositors will now
receive their insured deposits
within 30 days from the date that
a financial institution is closed
without the need to file any
claims. This contrasts from the
original procedure which could
have taken up to a maximum of
160 days.

GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

Audit
Sub-Committee

Legal
Sub-Committee
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Investment
Sub-Committee

Board of Directors
Risk Management
Sub-Committee
Executive
Remuneration
Sub-Committee
Digital Organization
Strategy Steering
Sub-Committee
Data as of 30 June 2018
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The Board of Directors comprises the Chairman, a representative of the Ministry of
Finance, a representative of the Bank of Thailand (BOT), and 3 - 5 experts from the finance
and fiscal field as well as those from the field of legal. The President is a Board member
and serves as the Secretary to the Board.
The Chairman, Expert Directors, and President have a four-year term, and can be
renewed for up to two consecutive terms. The Chairman and Expert Directors are appointed
by the Cabinet based on the Minister of Finance’s proposal, and the President is appointed
by the Cabinet as recommended by the Minister of Finance.
Meeting schedules are predetermined and meetings are held at least once a month.
In 2017, there were 12 Board meetings, each of which had a definitive agenda. Moreover,
quarterly performance reports were submitted to the Minister of Finance. Meeting notices,
along with the agenda and related documents, were delivered at least 3 days prior to the
meeting dates. During each meeting, the Chairman allocated sufficient time for discussions
and allowed all Directors to deliberately express their views. Management was invited to
participate in the meetings to provide relevant information and to acknowledge Board
policies for efficient implementation.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Nithit
Tungsnga

Expert Director
(Finance and Fiscal)

Mr. Narathorn Mrs. Nattanun
Wongvises

Asawalertsak

Expert Director
(Finance and Fiscal)

Expert Director
(Legal)

Mr. Ronadol
Numnonda

Representative Director from
Bank of Thailand
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Mr. Krisada

Mr. Lavaron

Mr. Rujapong

Mr. Satorn

Chairman

Representative Director
from the
Ministry of Finance

Expert Director
(Finance and Fiscal)

Director and Secretary
to the Board

Chinavicharana

Sangsnit

Prabhasanobol

Topothai

Audit Sub-Committee

The Audit Sub-Committee comprises the Chairperson and 4 other members, with the Vice President of the Internal
Audit Department acting as the Secretary. The members consist of:
1. Mr. Ronadol Numnonda				
Chairperson
2. Ms. Pattanant Petchchedchoo			
Member
1/
3. Mrs. Povongtip Poramapojn 				Member
4. Mrs. Danuja Kunpanitchakit				
Member
5. Vice President, Internal Audit Department		
Secretary
1/

Deposit Protection Agency
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Replaces Mr. Preecha Poramapojn (term expiration), effective 5 June 2017

The Audit Sub-Committee conducts its roles and responsibilities based on the Audit Sub-Committee Charter by
ensuring good corporate governance, monitoring risk management and internal controls – which includes
Information Security Management System (ISMS) according to international standards, examining the DPA’s
operations and financial reports, supervising internal audit operations, reviewing internal audit results and
recommendations of the Internal Audit Department, external experts, and auditors, and monitoring the implementation
of such recommendations. In addition, the Audit Sub-Committee also provides recommendations to management and
related departments to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the DPA’s operations.

Legal Sub-Committee

The Legal Sub-Committee comprises 6 members including the Chairperson, with the Vice President of the Legal
Department acting as the Secretary. The members consist of:
1. Mrs. Nattanun Asawalertsak			
Chairperson
2. Mr. Pruettipong Srimachand			
Member
1/
3. Mr. Pichai Larksukthom 				Member
4. Mr. Seaksan Sooksang1/				Member
5. Mrs. Sumaporn Manason1/				Member
6. Ms. Ploy Charoensom2/				Member
7. Vice President, Legal Department			
Secretary
1/

Legal Sub-Committee Members 3 - 5 replace Mr. Kittisak Julsamuan, Mrs. Rosporn Sooksomporn, and Mr. Attapol Attaworadej
		 (term expirations), effective 1 December 2017.
2
Appointed to the Legal Sub-Committee, effective 1 December 2017

The Legal Sub-Committee is responsible for considering draft laws, rules, regulations, and announcements within
the scope of the DPA’s Board of Directors’ authority, as well as providing opinions and recommendations on legal
enforcement relevant to the DPA’s operations.

Investment Sub-Committee

The Investment Sub-Committee comprises 4 members including the Chairperson, with the Vice President of the
Treasury Department acting as the Secretary. The members consist of:
1. Mr. Lavaron Sangsnit				Chairperson
2. Mrs. Alisara Mahasandana				Member
3. Ms. Thiranuch Thampimukvatana			
Member
4. Mr. Satorn Topothai				Member
5. Vice President, Legal Department			
Secretary
The Investment Sub-Committee’s responsibility is to appraise the investment policy for proposal to the Board of
Directors, to determine the DPA’s investment strategies, oversee and monitor its investments, and report investment
performance to Board of Directors. In addition, the Investment Sub-Committee also provides opinions on investments
and proposes a list of juristic entities for conducting investment operations to the Board of Directors.

Risk Management Sub-Committee

The Risk Management Sub-Committee comprises 4 members including the Chairperson, with the Vice President
of the Risk Management Department acting as the Secretary. The members consist of:
1. Mr. Rujapong Prabhasanobol			
Chairperson
2. Ms. Banthornchome Kaewsa-ard			
Member
1/
3. Mr. Parisun Chantanahom 				Member
4. Mr. Satorn Topothai				Member
5. Vice President, Risk Management Department
Secretary
1/

Replaces Mrs. Nawaron Dejsuvan (resignation), effective 1 October 2017

The Risk Management Sub-Committee is responsible for creating and providing opinions on policy, strategy, and
operations, as well as determining acceptable organizational risk levels that are consistent with the DPA’s strategy.
In addition, it oversees risk management at both strategic and tactical levels, and reports risk management results –
including risk issues and measures designed to mitigate them – to the Board of Directors.
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Executive Remuneration Sub-Committee

The Executive Remuneration Sub-Committee comprises 4 members including the Chairperson, with the Vice
President of the Human Resources Department acting as the Secretary. The members consist of:
1. Mr. Nithit Tungsnga				Chairperson
2. Mr. Rujapong Prabhasanobol			
Member
3. Mr. Varanon Peetiwan				Member
4. Mr. Nutavoot Pongsiri				Member
5. Vice President, Human Resources Department
Secretary
The Executive Remuneration Sub-Committee is tasked with determing appropriate remuneration for the
performance of the President prior to submission to the Board of Directors for approval. It is also responsible for
considering benefits for the President, Senior Executive Vice President, and Executive Vice Presidents as delegated
by the Board of Directors.

Deposit Protection Agency
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Digital Organization Strategy Steering Sub-Committee

The Digital Organization Strategy Steering Sub-Committee1/ comprises 7 members including the Chairperson,
with the Senior Executive Vice President of the DPA and Vice President of the Information Technology Department
acting as the Secretary and Vice Secretary, respectively. The members consist of:่
1. Mr. Lavaron Sangsnit					Chairperson
2. Mr. Rujapong Prabhasanobol				Member
3. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises					Member
4. Mr. Chim Tantiyaswasdikul					Member
5. Mrs. Budsakorn Teerapunyachai				Member
6. Mr. Surapol Opasatien					Member
7. Mr. Satorn Topothai					Member
8. Senior Executive Vice President, DPA			
Secretary
9. Vice President, Information Technology Department		
Vice Secretary
1/

The Digital Organization Strategy Steering Sub-Committee’s term is from 1 October 2017 until 30 September 2018.

The Digital Organization Strategy Steering Sub-Committee is responsible for creating an information technology
strategic framework and corporate plans to drive the DPA’s digital organization strategy in order to support the DPA’s
mission and other tasks as defined by the Board of Directors. It also monitors operations to maintain consistency with
the framework and corporate plans, and reports results to the Board of Directors every quarter.

Systems and Information Technology Development Supervisory
Sub-Committee

1/

The Systems and Information Technology Development Supervisory Sub-Committee’s term is from 1 February 2016 until 31 July 2017.
Resigned, effective 25 May 2017.
3/
Replaces Mr. Chanachai Prayoonsin, effective 2 June 2017.
2/

The Systems and Information Technology Development Supervisory Sub-Committee is tasked with providing
advice on outlining the development framework of the DPA’s IT systems, as well as opinions and recommendations
concerning operational guidelines and processes relevant to deposit protection and IT operations. The Sub-Committee
is also responsible for ensuring that the DPA’s IT development plans are consistent with the established frameworks,
guidelines, operations, and corporate plans.
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The Systems and Information Technology Development Supervisory Sub-Committee1/ comprises 12 members
including the Chairperson and Deputy Chairperson, with the Vice President of the Payout Department and Vice
President of the Information Technology Department acting as the Secretary and Assistant Secretary, respectively.
The members consist of:
1. Mr. Lavaron Sangsnit					Chairperson
2. Mr. Rujapong Prabhasanobol				Member
3. Mr. Narathorn Wongvises					Member
4. Mr. Supachai Jongsiri					Member
5. Mr. Chim Tantiyaswasdikul					Member
6. Mr. Permsuk Sutthinoon					Member
7. Mr. Chanchai Boonritchaisri					Member
8. Mrs. Povongtip Poramapojn2/				Member
9. Mr. Vichit Kornvityakoon					Member
10. Ms. Siritida Panomwan Na Ayudhya				
Member
3/
11. Ms. Varatip Argayee 					Member
12. Mr. Satorn Topothai					Member
13. Vice President, Payout Department				
Secretary
14. Vice President, Information Technology Department		
Assistant Secretary

CORPORATE
STRUCTURE

Audit
Sub-Committee

Board of Directors

President
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Internal Audit
Department

Senior Executive Vice President

Strategy Group
• Planning and Research Department
• Financial Institutions Analysis
Department
• Risk Management Department
• Corporate Communications
Department

Deposit Protection
Group
•
•
•
•

Legal Department
Treasury Department
Payout Department
Liquidation Department

Corporate
Management Group
•
•
•
•

Finance and Accounting Department
Human Resources Department
Information Technology Department
Corporate Administration Department

Mr. Satorn

Ms. Kamolwan

President

Senior Executive Vice President

Silapiruti
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Topothai

Ms. Banalee

Mr. Chiranuwat

Mrs. Piyaporn

Executive Vice President,
Strategy Group

Executive Vice President,
Deposit Protection Group

Executive Vice President,
Corporate Management
Group

Visessuvan

Tanyacharoen

Poklin

Ms. Sirikul

Mrs. Kulruedee
Choungprayoon

Rujatikumporn

Vice President,
Internal Audit Department

Vice President,
Financial Institutions
Analysis Department

Vice President,
Legal Department

Rojanakeratikan
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Ms. Pintip

Ms. Photjanee

Ms. Amporn

Ms. Kanokrat

Vice President,
Risk Management Department

Vice President,
Payout Department

Vice President,
Planning and Research
Department

Luanphaisarnnont

Sakongoul

Hirunburana

Mr. Piti

Mr. Sukit

Rojanasukarn

Supakitgosolchai

Akaranirunkul

Vice President,
Finance and Accounting
Department

Vice President,
Liquidation Department

Vice President,
Human Resources
Department

Mr. Suthee

Luangaramkul

Mr. Kaankorn Mr. Patsakorn
Jakkrichkul

Vice President,
Vice President,
Corporate Communications Corporate Administration
Department
Department

Maneenatra

Vice President,
Information Technology
Department

Mr. Somyot
Meepetchdee

Vice President,
Treasury Department
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Mr. Wichet

Deposit

Protection
Agency
Act (No. 2)
B.E. 2560 (2017)
Deposit Protection Agency
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Deposit Protection Agency Act (No. 2) B.E. 2560 (2017)
The Deposit Protection Agency proposed the amendments of the Deposit Protection Act B.E. 2551 (2008) with the purpose of
enhancing the reimbursement procedures to facilitate the depositors to rapidly receive their covered deposits without having to file
their claims. Additionally, the amendments also distinctively stipulate the mandate of the DPA including protection of the depositors’
interest and ensuring that the operations are complied with the international standards, all of which would create trust and stability
in the financial institution system.
The amendments then were enacted as the Deposit Protection Agency Act (No. 2) B.E. 2560 (2017) and proclaimed in
the Royal Gazette on 12 December 2017 with the effective date of 13 December 2017 onwards.

The key features of the amended law:
The Deposit Protection Agency Act (No. 2) B.E. 2560 (2017)
is effective as of 13 December 2017 onwards
Reimbursing
depositors within
30 days starting
from the license
revocation’s date
without having to
file for their
claims.

Determine the set-off
amount prior to the
depositor
reimbursement

Classify the branches
Possess the right to
Stipulate
of the foreign
seek for loans or to
the collaboration
engage in the loan
and information related commercial banks
established under the
agreement other than
to the controlled
Financial Institution
issuing bills, bonds, or
financial institution
Act to act as the
other financial
between the
juristic persons for
instruments for the
Controlling Committee
the benefits of the
benefits of the Deposit
and the DPA
liquidation process
Protection Fund
under Thai law.
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1. Distinctively stipulate the right of the DPA to seek for loans through the amendment of Section 7 (4) on the Deposit Protection
Act B.E. 2551 (2008) for the benefits of the depositor reimbursement of the Deposit Protection Fund and the operations of
the DPA. The amendment enables the DPA’s engagement in loan agreements and the issuance of bills, bonds and other
financial instruments.
2. Extend the scope of the Board’s power to include the power to issue rules, procedures, and conditions concerning the filing
of applications for disputing the compensated amount and the filing of applications for depositors who did not receive
compensation as well as the deposits in lieu of performance at the Deposit of Property Office. The Board’s power also
extends to consider and adjudicate the appeal and to semi-annually submit the DPA performance report to the Minister
of Finance. Therefore, Section 25(5) under the Deposit Protection Act B.E. 2551 (2008) was repealed and replaced by
Section 25 (6/1) (6/2) (6/3) and (6/4) along with Section 25 (11) on the amended Act.
3. Broaden the duties of the financial institution control committee and the DPA pursuant to the second paragraph under
Section 45 stating that:
“In the event where it is necessary to prepare for the compensation of depositors and the liquidation of a financial institution
whose license is revoked according to the Financial Institutions Businesses Act, the Control Committee and the Agency shall
have the duty to cooperate and exchange information related to the controlled financial institution between each other.”
4. Update the deposit reimbursement procedures as follows:
			 4.1 Depositors shall be reimbursed of their covered deposits within 30 days from the date the financial institution’s
license was revoked without having to submit documents for their claims. The amended law repealed the second to fifth
paragraph of Section 52 and added a new part to Section 53 to prescribe the duties of the DPA to compensate the protected
depositors for the aggregate sum of all deposit accounts within 30 days from the date on which the financial institution’s license
is revoked. If the depositor has debt in a fixed amount with the financial institution whose license is revoked that is due on or
before the date of the license revocation, the DPA shall deduct such due debt from the aggregate sum of all deposit accounts
in such financial institution before compensating the depositor.
			 4.2 Depositors have the right to file applications for disputing the compensated amount according to Section 53/1,
Section 53/2, Section 53/3, Section 53/4, and Section 53/5 of the amended Act to request for the examination of the disputed
compensation. In the event where the depositors who have yet to receive the compensation within the due period of 30 days
after the date that the license financial institution was revoked, the depositors are able to submit applications for their
compensation within the time frame stipulated on the law. The DPA shall make a decision on the applications within 60 days
as from the date of receipt of the application. In this regard, the period for making a decision on the application may be
extended but not exceeding 30 days as from the aforesaid due period.
			 In the event where any depositor does not file an application requesting for compensation within the due period, the DPA
shall deposit money equivalent to the amount in which the depositor is entitled to receive at the Deposit of Property Office and
treat this as the payment to the depositor. Regarding all the money deposited at the Deposit of Property Office, if the
depositor does not redeem such money within 3 years as from the date on which the DPA deposits such money, such
money shall become the estate of the financial institution whose license has been revoked.
			 On the other hand, if any depositor disagrees with the result of the disputed information examined or the decision making
on the application for the compensation or the amount deposited at the Deposit of Property Office, the depositor shall be entitled
to file an appeal in writing to the DPA within 15 days as from the date on which such result is notified to the depositor, or within
30 days as from the date of announcement and publication. Then, the DPA shall send the appeal to the Board within 15 days
as from the date of receipt of such appeal and the Board shall consider such appeal within 60 days. In the event where there is
the necessity that the Board is unable to make a decision within the aforesaid period, the period for considering appeals may
be extended not exceeding 30 days as from the aforesaid due period.
5. Classify the branches of the foreign commercial banks established under the Financial Institution Businesses Act to act as
the juristic persons for the benefits of the liquidation process under Thai law.

Depositor Reimbursement Process (Previous vs. Amended)
Time Frame for Depositor Reimbursement
according to the Previous Law

Financial
Institution’s
License Revocation

Time Frame for Depositor Reimbursement
according to the Amended Law

Financial
Institution’s
License Revocation

Within 40 days after the license has been revoked,
the DPA shall make an announcement to
the public to submit a claims request form
for compensation.
Within 90 days after the DPA has made
the announcement, eligible depositors shall
submit their claims request form to the DPA.

Deposit Protection Agency
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Within 30 days after the submission of the
claims request form, the DPA shall provide
compensation to each depositor.

Within 30 days after the license has been revoked,
the DPA shall provide compensation to each
depositor.

Subordinate Legislation
To conform to the amended law, the DPA has prepared the 5 related Notifications of the Board of Directors of the Deposit
Protection Agency as guidance for operations and to preserve the benefits of the depositors:
1. Notification of the Board of the Deposit Protection Agency Regarding the Rules, Procedures and Conditions of the Deposit
Protection Agency’s Application for Loan B.E. 2561 (2018) which stipulates the rules, procedures, and conditions for various
loan application methods to benefit the Fund regarding depositor reimbursement and the DPA operation.
2. Notification of the Board of the Deposit Protection Agency Regarding the Rules, Procedures and Conditions concerning the
Compensation to Depositors according to Section 53 B.E. 2561 (2018) which determines the reimbursement processes and
methodologies together with the principles of the debt set off before the deposit payout.
3. Notification of the Board of the Deposit Protection Agency Regarding the Rules, Procedures and Conditions for the Filing of
Applications Disputing the Compensated Amount according to Section 53/1 B.E. 2561 (2018) which identifies the processes
or channels for depositors who would like to file for compensation dispute applications to ensure they are able to examine
and dispute their compensated amount.
4. Notification of the Board of the Deposit Protection Agency Regarding the Rules, Procedures and Conditions for the Filing of
Applications for Depositor Who Did Not Receive Compensation according to Section 53/2 B.E. 2561 (2018) which prescribes
processes or channels to file for compensation application in the case that the depositors did not receive the deposit
reimbursement within 30 days after the date of the failed financial institution’s license revocation according to their rights.

5. Notification of the Board of the Deposit Protection Agency Regarding the Rules, Procedures and Conditions of Deposits in
lieu of Performance at the Deposit of Property Office B.E. 2561 (2018) which is issued for the depositors who did not receive
the compensation nor did they file the applications for their compensation within the specified time frame. Pursuant to this
Notification, the eligible depositors have the right to file for their compensation application at the Deposit of Property Office
within 3 years as of the date of the Deposits in lieu of Performance Notification.

Advantages Derived from
the Deposit Protection Agency Act (No. 2) B.E. 2560 (2017)
Encourage
depositors’
confidence

Ensure business
sustainability with the
least impact incurred
due to the improved
depositor
reimbursement process

Enhance the efficient
deposit protection
scheme in compliance
with the international
standards

Increase the efficiency
or promote innovation
by improving the
deposit reimbursement
procedures

The Advantages
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The amended Deposit Protection Act is designed to facilitate depositor convenience. In the case where the financial institution’s
license is revoked, the DPA is obliged to compensate all the depositors in the failed financial institution without requiring depositors
to file applications for compensation. In addition, it also benefits the operations of the DPA in the following points:
1. Increase the efficiency regarding depositor reimbursement preparations which not only include the preliminary preparation
for the period where the problematic financial institution is taken control of but also include the preparation of the Deposit
Protection Fund to be sufficient for deposit reimbursing.
2. Enhance the stability of the financial institution system and the country’s economy through the accelerated deposit
reimbursement procedures. The improvement encourages the trust and confidence among the public sector, business sector,
and financial sector. It also mitigates the impact from the possibility of bank run in other financial institutions ensuring
the business continuation. No system-wide impacts or systemic risks occur.
3. Ensure business sustainability for the depositors who are business owners. The expedited reimbursement processes ensure
that they are able to continuously operate their businesses with the least negative impacts incurred since the deposits received
would be disbursed as a money circulation in the country’s economy.
4. Enhance the country’s competitiveness by developing the efficient deposit protection scheme in compliance with the
International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI) Core Principles for Effective Deposit Insurance Systems
5. Increase the efficiency or promote innovation by integrating more technologies to improve the DPA’s deposit reimbursement
procedures and complying with the IADI Core Principles to reimburse the deposits to the depositors within the specified
duration, with correct amount, and the compensated amount should be able to be examined in accordance with the
prescribed rules on the law.
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Expedite the deposit
reimbursement time
frame to be within
30 days from the
date the financial
institution’s license
was revoked

Deposit Protection Agency
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FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION
SYSTEM 2017

19

under the Coverage of the

Deposit Protection Agency
Bangkok Bank
Krungthai Bank
Bank of Ayudhya
Kasikornbank
Kiatnakin Bank
CIMB Thai Bank
TMB Bank
TISCO Bank
Siam Commercial Bank
Thanachart Bank
United Overseas Bank (Thai)
Standard Chartered Bank (Thai)
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Thai)
Land and Houses Bank
The Thai Credit Retail Bank
Mega International Commercial Bank
Bank of China (Thai)
ANZ Bank (Thai)
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank (Thai)

Commercial
Banks:

11

Foreign Bank
Branches

2

Finance Companies
Srisawad Finance
Advance Finance

JPMorgan Chase Bank
Citibank, N.A.
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
Deutsche Bank AG.
BNP Paribas
Mizuho Bank
Bank of America, National Association
RHB Bank Berhad
Indian Overseas Bank
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation

3

Credit Foncier Companies
Lynn Phillips Mortgage Credit Foncier
World Credit Foncier
Capital Link Credit Foncier

Note: Starting from 13 June 2017 onwards, Bangkok First Investment & Trust changed its name to Srisawad Finance as Srisawad Power 1979 Plc. acquired
the business in March 2017.
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Financial Institutions

Financial Institution System in 2017
Summary
In 2017, the Thai economy expanded at a rate of 3.9%, higher than the previous year’s growth of 3.3% as a result of a clearer
economic recovery from nearly every sector. With exports continuing to gain momentum and private investments also growing,
loan demand increased – particularly during the latter half of the year. However, this recovery remained concentrated in large
corporates; small and medium enterprises (SMEs) in some sectors and low-income households did not benefit from this trend,
resulting in a continued deterioration in loan quality. Thus, financial institutions continued to set loan loss provisions at a high level
to support lower-quality loans.
The financial institution system continued to record increasing operating profits. However, net profits were slightly down due
to higher provisioning expenses for loan quality deterioration and preparations for implementing the new accounting standard
(IFRS 9). Capital funds remained strong as seen by the increase in the capital adequacy ratio (BIS Ratio) and ample liquidity for
the expansion of loans in the upcoming period.

Total Assets, Capital Position, and Overall Performance

Deposit Protection Agency
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At the end of 2017, the financial institution system had total assets of 18.4 trillion baht, an increase of 671.886 billion baht
or 3.7% from the end of 2016 due to the significant expansion of loans. In particular, banking and financial business loans recorded
the highest increase, followed by consumer loans.
The capital fund of the financial institution system in 2017 was 2.5 trillion baht, an increase of 88.475 billion baht or 3.74% from
the end of 2016 due to the appropriation of earnings. Thus, the BIS Ratio of the financial institution system increased to 18.19%
(up from 18.04% from the end of 2016), which was higher than the minimum requirement set by the Bank of Thailand at 9.75%
(in addition to the minimum legal requirement of no less than 8.5%, this includes the conservation buffer set by the Bank of Thailand
for commercial banks – which sets out to increase the capital adequacy ratio by 0.625% per year starting from 2016 until the
conservation buffer is not less than 2.5% in 2019). This level was high enough for future business expansion and for handling risks
and impacts from potential volatility in the global economy.

Summary of the Financial Institution System

Total assets of 18.4
trillion baht,

The BIS Ratio

increased to
18.19% – with

an increase of
671.9 billion baht the minimum
(3.79%) due to legal requirement
the significant
expansion of loans

being 8.5%.

Operating profits Outstanding loans
increased to 394.10 amounted to 14.75
billion baht or
trillion baht,

an increase of
2.82% due to
management of
funding costs.

an increase of
8.13%. The NPL
ratio stood at
2.92%.

The Liquidity
Coverage Ratio
(LCR) was
180.11%, much
higher than the
requirement of
70% set by the
Bank of Thailand.

The amount of
deposits in the
financial
institution
system was
13.25 trillion
baht,

an increase of
5.09% from the

2016 amount of
12.61 trillion baht.

For the financial institution system’s performance in 2017, net profit amounted to 187.635 billion baht, a decrease of 11.889
billion baht or down 5.96% from 2016. This was a result of higher loan loss provisions to cushion for loan quality deterioration
and as well as to prepare for implementing the IFRS 9 standard. However, operating profits continued to increase, owing to the
management of funding costs to manage interest rate spreads. Operating profit in 2017 was 394.610 billion baht, an increase of
10.818 billion baht or 2.82% increase from the prior year.

At the end of 2017, the financial institution system had
outstanding loans to the amount of 14.7 trillion baht, an increase
of 1.1 trillion baht or 8.13%, registering higher growth compared
to the end of 2016 when it increased by 3.11%. Both interbank
loans and business and consumer loans accelerated compared
to the previous year. Like in the previous year, the majority of
loans were concentrated in the same sectors such as consumer
loans at 4.1 trillion baht, banking and financial business loans
at 3.4 trillion baht, and manufacturing sector loans at 2.3 trillion
baht. These loans accounted for 28.04%, 22.89%, and 15.42%
of outstanding loans, respectively.

Non-Performing Loans

Trends on Total Loans and NPL
14,749

13,228

13,639

2.71%

3.11%

2.56%
2015

2.83%

8.13%
2.92%

2016

2017

Total Loans (billion baht)

% Gross NPL

% Loan Growth (YoY)

The economic recovery continued to gain momentum as evidenced by the ongoing expansion in exports and increase in
private investments. Therefore, even though overall loan quality decreased, it did so at a slower rate compared to the end of the
prior year. As of the end of 2017, the financial institution system’s gross non-performing loans (gross NPLs) amounted to 430.805
billion baht, an increase of 44.220 billion baht or 11.44%. The ratios of gross NPLs and net NPLs to total loans increased to 2.92%
and 1.39%, respectively, from 2.83% and 1.33% at the end of 2016 due to the slower overall loan growth compared to NPLs.
Furthermore, most of the NPLs in the financial institution system were concentrated in the manufacturing sector, followed by
the consumer sector and commercial sector.
Financial institutions continued to closely monitor loan quality while emphasizing high-quality growth, focusing on attracting
new low-risk customers, and optimizing procedures for monitoring debt settlement for existing customers. Moreover, financial
institutions continued to set aside loan provisions to cope with uncertainty that might affect loan quality. As such, the ratio of actual
to regulatory loan loss provisions, and the ratio of loan loss provisions to NPLs increased from the previous year from 155.07%
and 136.47%, respectively, to 166.73% and 139.32% as of the end of 2017, respectively.
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Loans

DEPOSIT
OVERVIEW
IN 2017
Deposits

Deposit Protection Agency

30

As of the end of 2017, financial institutions under the protection of the Deposit Protection Agency had a total deposit value
of 12.6 trillion baht, an increase of 633.37 billion baht or 5.29% from the end of 2016. This rate of growth was higher compared
to the previous year’s deposit growth of 2.16%, and was consistent with the growth in loans. Regardless, the majority of financial
institutions continued to place an importance on controlling funding costs to manage interest rate spreads. This was reflected in
the weighted average deposit interest rates of commercial banks in Q4/2017 being at its lowest level in 7 years, while the interest
rates for new deposit campaigns continued to remain steady.
The majority of deposits were held in savings accounts, accounting for 56.65% of deposits, while fixed deposit accounts
consisted of 38.13% of deposits. Deposits of individuals amounted to 7.1 trillion baht, which accounted for 56.53% of all financial
institution system deposits.
Unit: Million Baht
Account Type

Depositor Type

Total
Amount

Current

Savings

Value of Deposits

Fixed

Less than 1
million baht

1 - 15 million
baht

More than 15
million baht

Government and State

1,012,152

84,098

595,402

332,652

7,081

55,979

949,092

Individuals

7,123,645

74,642

4,278,584

2,770,419

2,217,380

2,969,090

1,937,175

Juristic Persons

4,158,726

464,348

2,105,186

1,589,192

109,754

574,396

3,474,576

Various Funds

295,751

24,039

158,867

112,845

737

8,146

286,868

Financial Institutions

10,473

9,480

819

174

17

447

10,009

12,600,747

656,607

7,138,858 4,805,282

2,334,969

3,608,058

6,657,720

Total Amount

Deposits Protected by the Deposit Protection Agency
The Deposit Protection Agency protects deposits denominated in Thai baht at all commercial banks (including branches of
foreign banks), finance companies, and credit foncier companies located in Thailand. The types of accounts under protection include
current accounts, savings accounts, fixed deposit accounts, certificates of deposit, deposit receipts, and other deposit accounts
under different names with obligations to pay back depositors.
Based on statistics from the end of 2017, there were approximately 74.7 million depositors under the DPA’s coverage,
an increase of 3.8 million or 5.30% from the end of 2016. Most of the depositors were individuals, and 98.21% of all depositors
had deposit amounts that did not exceed 1 million baht.

million
depositors are
protected by the DPA.

DPA

Depositors under Protection

Coverage Limit per
Depositor per Financial
Institution
An increase of 3.76 million
depositors

(an increase of 5.30%)

Percentage of
Total Number
of Depositors

15

10

5

1

million baht

million baht

million baht million baht

99.90%

99.83%

99.66% 98.21%

At the end of 2017, the DPA had a deposit coverage limit of 15 million baht per depositor per financial institution. The total
amount of protected deposits of all depositors in the system amounted to 7.1 trillion baht, or 56.44% of all deposits under protection.
The other 5.4 trillion baht comprised deposits in accounts which exceeded the coverage limit (deposit accounts with more than
15 million baht).

The Number of Fully Protected Depositors
and the Value of the Protected Deposits in Each Coverage Level
Number of Depositors Fully Protected
Coverage Level

1 million baht
5 million baht
10 million baht
15 million baht
25 million baht
Full Guarantee

Persons

(%)

73,350,988
74,429,890
74,562,232
74,611,223
74,643,739
74,686,941

98.21
99.66
99.83
99.90
99.94
100.00

Value of Protected Deposits
Million Baht

3,670,533
5,741,560
6,605,046
7,075,139
7,638,594
12,536,419

(%)
29.28
45.80
52.69
56.44
60.93
100.00

As of 31 December 2017
Note: The number of protected depositors is defined as the aggregate of all deposit accounts per depositor per financial institution and then adding that
figure for all member financial institutions.
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74.69

Trend of Deposits under Protection
Although the amount of protected deposits in the past increased at a decelerating pace, deposits in 2017 increased at an
accelerating pace. This was consistent with an increase in loan demand, especially in the latter half of the year due to clearer
signs of economic recovery. Most of this deposit growth was found in savings and current accounts. For 2018, deposit growth is
expected to continue in line with the economic recovery. Financial institutions are expected to continue raising deposits to support
increasing loan demand, particularly corporate loans. As a result, competition between financial institutions in terms of special deposit
campaigns is expected to occur – resulting in potentially higher interest rates. Furthermore, financial institutions may increase
the number of long-term deposit products towards the end of the year for the purpose of managing their funding costs in
anticipation of an increase in the policy interest rate.

Protected Deposits

Number of Protected Depositors
74.7
5.30

12.5
11.4

11.7

69.0
67.4

6.41

32

70.9

11.9

5.33
1.86

2.09

2015

2016

2.83

2.86

Deposit Protection Agency

2.28

2014

Unit: Trillion Baht

2017

Growth Rate (% yoy)

2014

2015

Unit: Million Persons

2016

2017

Growth Rate (% yoy)

FinTech, Deposits, and Deposit Products
In 2017, the majority of financial institutions began allowing customers to open deposit accounts without deposit passbooks.
Some institutions also increased convenience for customers by providing an online channel for opening deposit accounts without
needing to go to a branch. Moreover, customers who already have accounts with a financial institution and wish to open a new
account no longer need to send any additional documents associated with a typical account opening. Financial institutions continued
to provide other channels for depositing money apart from bank branch counters such as ATMs, Internet banking, and mobile
applications, thereby reflecting the decreasing importance of physical branches. In addition, digital banking – and particularly the
linking of deposit accounts with other technologies – remains an emphasis for most financial institutions. Examples of this continuing
trend include the linking of deposit accounts directly to LINE Pay accounts or other electronic wallets of telecom providers. Another
area that will continue to play a vital role for financial institutions in 2018 is Big Data. Analyzing Big Data can help determine
in-depth consumer behavior and predict future trends such as credit card utilization in the last 3 months or deposit behavior in
the last 6 months. Financial institutions can then use this research to identify behaviors and trends at the individual level and develop
financial products that address the needs and wants of their customers. One example is the cross-selling of other financial products,
such as credit cards, to existing customers by pitching various benefits that would most likely appeal to their needs and
personalities. The DPA continues to closely monitor these developments and utilize mechanisms where appropriate to further
improve operations relevant to its duties and responsibilities.
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STRATEGIC
PLAN
2018 - 2021

In September 2017, the DPA strategic direction and four-year strategic plan for the year 2018 - 2021 was approved by the
Board of Directors aiming to establish the Information Technology (IT) fundamental infrastructure that was up-to-date, efficient, and
capable of meeting the challenges embedded in the transformed economic conditions and financial institution system as a result
of the financial technology (FinTech) disruption. The IT infrastructure should support the working processes of the organization in
driving the DPA digital transformation. This, then, would lead to agile, transparent, effective, and efficient operations and enable
the achievement of all objectives prescribed by the law. The DPA strategic plan comprises four strategic themes:

Strategic Theme Strategic Theme Strategic Theme Strategic Theme

1

Be a pillar within the Thai
financial safety-net (FSN)
which incorporates the
digital technologies to
fulfill the missions

Deposit Protection Agency
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2

Manage adverse
situations to prevent
Systemic Crises

3

Complete, accurate,
convenient, and swift
reimbursement as
stipulated by the law

4

Perform liquidation in
compliance with the law
and ensure stakeholders
are well taken care

The DPA determined the strategic direction and analyzed the operations to fulfill its missions relative to the 4 perspectives
according to the concept of the Balanced Scorecard. It also took into account the incorporation of the IT system within the organization.
1. Stakeholder Perspective – perspectives of the general public, depositors, insured financial institutions, FSN members, foreign
deposit insurers, and the DPA staff
2. Financial Perspective – takes into account the adequacy of the DPA’s funds and capital to fulfill its missions.
3. Internal Process Perspective – processes to help achieve the objectives set in the stakeholder and financial perspectives
such as the information and operating systems required for deposit reimbursement, investment management system, a liquidity
management plan, and an early warning system identifying financial institutions at risk.
4. Learning and Growth Perspective – maximizing employees’ work potentials, incorporating IT to the management system,
managing the database and knowledge on the basis of the digital technologies, and protection from cyber-attacks.

In preparing the organization to transform to the “Digital DPA”, the digital transformation technology
road map was developed as a four-year plan for the year 2018 - 2021 for the purpose of developing
the digital technology infrastructure consistent with the DPA strategic direction which can be categorized
into the following five perspectives:

Mission
Perspective

5

		 HR
Transformation
Perspective

4

Business
Improvement
Perspective

Digital
DPA
IT Infrastructure
Transformation
Perspective

2

Communication
Perspective

3

The DPA then launched the following updated corporate vision statement to steer the organization
towards the digital transformation:

“To be a modern and trustworthy deposit protection agency
that promotes public confidence in the financial system.”
This intends to enhance the organization’s efficiency and personnel’s potentials and create
innovative corporate culture which, in turn, will promote the public confidence and eventually lead
to the sustainability and stability of the economy and the financial institution system.
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Deposit Protection Agency Strategic Plan 							

MISSION
Strategic
Theme

Stakeholders

• To provide protection for the deposit of money in financial institutions
• To enhance confidence and stability in the financial institution system
• To manage the financial institution subject to control and to liquidate
the financial institution whose license is revoked

1
Be a pillar within the Thai financial safety-net (FSN)
which incorporates the digital technologies to fulfill the missions
Public awareness is promoted via a wide variety of modern communication channels.
The public is educated and trusts in the deposit protection system.
Successfully establish data integration with related organizations
Strengthen relationships with mass media, FSN members, financial institutions, and foreign
deposit insurers
FSN members, financial institutions, and mass media disseminate a single message through
“One Voice”.
The employees’ potentials and digital technology knowledge are enhanced.
Strong and sustainable growth of the DPA’s Fund and capital with sufficient liquidity

Financial

Internal Process

Learning & Growth

Incorporate new technologies to continuously develop procedures and systems in order to
achieve mission
Establish fully integrated information systems with related organizations
Develop the data storage, processing, and integration systems and data analytical tools for
managing large and complex data
Continuously research, analyze, and monitor the development and the shift of the FinTech
trends
Adopt technologies to reform the working procedures and internal process to be effective,
swift, and value added
Establish IT security systems that quickly respond to the emerging cyber threats

Enhance IT knowledge and
continuously maximize
personnel’s potential

Core Values

Adopt digital technologies to enhance
fundamental infrastructure and
management systems

							2018 - 2021

VISION
2

To be a modern and trustworthy deposit protection agency that
promotes public confidence in the financial system

3

Jointly manage adverse
Complete, accurate, convenient,
situations to prevent Systemic and swift reimbursement as
Crises
stipulated by the law

4
Perform liquidation in compliance with
the law and ensure stakeholders are
well taken care of

Encourage public confidence
which, in turn, will prevent
escalation of financial institution
problems
Accurate, complete, and prompt
public communication

Depositors are conveniently and
swiftly compensated through
modern payment channels with
the complete and accurate amount.
No panic arisen among depositors
of other financial institutions or
escalation of problems

Liquidated proceeds are returned to creditors
at a fair rate.
Performing debtors are able to continue
operating their businesses.
Creditors/debtors are able to monitor their
liquidation case status.

Sufficient liquidity of the DPA’s
fund and capital readily available
for reimbursement obligations and
liquidation

Sufficient liquidity of the DPA’s
fund and capital for depositor
reimbursement

Adequate operating capital
Full repayment of DPA expenses spent during
the deposit reimbursement and liquidation
process
Rapid repayment of the Deposit Protection Fund

Support the control process of
troubled financial institutions
Prepare for depositor reimbursement
and liquidation internal Processes
when the financial institution’s
license is revoked
Collaborate with FSN members,
financial institutions, and the
media

Incorporate modern technologies to
the following processes and systems for
more efficient deposit reimbursement
comprising:
Deposit Reimbursement
procedures and Systems
Modern reimbursement channels
Cooperation with agent bank
responsible for receiving claims
and payment
Liquidity plan procedures
Cooperate with FSN members,
financial institutions, and the
media
IT security systems

Establish appropriate database systems
and knowledge base for operating with
digital technologies

Develop IT security systems

Incorporate modern technologies to the following
processes and systems for more efficient
liquidation and asset management:
Accurate and transparent liquidation
procedures and systems
Collaboration with asset management
corporations and financial advisors
Liquidity plan procedures
IT security systems

Adhere to the DPA’s good governance

Trustworthiness/Integrity/Synergy/Social Mind

DPA
CORPORATE
PLAN 2018
The DPA aims to continuously enhance efficiency of the fundamental
infrastructure and capabilities of the organization in steering towards the Digital
DPA.
In 2018, the DPA developed its corporate plan aligning with the four-year DPA
strategic plan and in compliance with the Deposit Protection Agency Act (No. 2)
B.E. 2560 (2017) to fulfill the mission. The plan comprises:

Deposit Protection Agency
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1
2
3

Drafting the sub-legislation in accordance with the amended
Deposit Protection Agency Act. The sub-legislation is required
to be finalized within 180 days after the Deposit Protection
Agency Act (No. 2) B.E. 2560 (2017) was proclaimed in the
Royal Gazette.

Developing and improving the DPA’s operating systems in
compliance with the amended law and the national payment
system framework by incorporating IT to support the operations
conducted when the financial institution is subject to control
until the liquidation of the financial institution whose license is
revoked. The operations include, for instance, reimbursement,
liquidation, and communication and public relation, and etc.
The Depositor Reimbursement Operating System should be
developed to support the advancing financial technologies.

Collaborating with the financial institutions to prepare
the Single Customer View report which contains deposit
reimbursement data, asset data, and the financial institution’s
liabilities for the purpose of subrogating the DPA’s rights as
well as for system integration.

5

Promoting the public awareness about the deposit protection
system via a variety of popular communication and public
relations channels to achieve the greatest penetration across
different groups of depositors. The examples of communication
channels include television, social media, printed materials,
and various public relations activities to increase the level of
awareness as well as to enhance the good reputation among
government entities and the public.

6

Developing the data storage system and efficiently managing
the fundamental IT infrastructure with proper security based
on international standards.

7

Improving internal processes and integrating systems to
reduce redundant work resulting in expedited, efficient, and
transparent operations.

8

Enhancing and developing the employees’ quality of life
and work environment. The DPA values its personnel as the
crucial foundation which plays a major role in driving the
organization forward; therefore, in order to cultivate pride and
trust in the organization, activities and projects are planned
to promote and support the happy workplace environment.
These also aim to help the employees to effectively adjust to
the future changes.
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4

Conducting a research concerning the data storage and
data analytic systems together with the data analytic report
format to establish guidance for an efficient operating system
development.

OPERATION
RESULTS
IN 2017
-DPA Operation Results in 2017Deposit Protection Agency
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1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Management of the Deposit Protection Fund and
the DPA’s Capital
Development of the Depositor
Reimbursement System
Analyzing and Monitoring Financial Institutions’
Operating Performance and Financial Position
Risk Management, Governance and Audit

Communications and Public Relations
Enhancing Cooperation and Collaboration
Organizational Management and
Human Resource Management
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The Deposit Protection Agency (DPA) continues to carry out its operations according to the strategic
plan and missions prescribed under the law. Doing so efficiently and reliably allows the DPA to enhance
public confidence and foster stable and sustainable growth of the Thai economy and financial institution
system in its role as a member of the financial safety-net (FSN).
In 2017, the DPA enhanced its preparedness in several aspects in order to manage challenges
arising from disruptive technologies or align its operations with international standards that may impact
the Thai deposit protection scheme in the future. Examples of these enhancements include: 1) amending
the Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E. 2551 (2008) to accelerate depositor reimbursement, further clarify
the DPA’s mandate to protect depositors’ interests, and ensure that operations comply with international
standards; and 2) further developing the Depositor Reimbursement System and simulation on the
aggregation of depositor reimbursement data to increase public confidence on the DPA’s critical functions.
In addition, the DPA also prioritized collaboration among the FSN members to maintain stability in the
financial institution system, and continued to promote understanding regarding the deposit protection to
the public and financial institution executives and employees through various channels in order to mitigate
any impacts arising from panic during a financial crisis.
To manage its operations in a constantly evolving environment and ensure efficiency and preparedness
in steering towards its goal of becoming a digital organization based on its strategic plan, the DPA took
into account the importance of enhancing IT skills to match with the rapidly changing global financial
landscape and incorporated modern technologies to improve the efficiency of internal operations in
compliance with IT security standards.
In summary, last year’s performance was crucial in driving the DPA towards its digital transformation
and enhancing the robustness of the deposit protection system to be consistent with international
standards for the purpose of increasing public confidence and establishing trust among depositors,
financial institutions, and all stakeholders – ultimately resulting in the sustainability and stability of the
financial institution system.

1. Management of the Deposit Protection Fund and the DPA’s Capital
Management of the Deposit Protection Fund complies with the laws, policies, regulations, and criteria under the Deposit
Protection Act B.E. 2551 (2008), which stipulates that the DPA shall invest at least 60 percent of the total investment in highlysecure securities according to the ministerial regulations.
The Ministerial Regulations on the Investment Rules and Methods of the Deposit Protection Agency B.E. 2553 (2010) prescribe
that the DPA must invest in highly-secure securities at no less than 80 percent of the whole investment. Under this framework,
the Board of Directors set its investment policy by taking into account stability, liquidity, and returns.

Deposit Protection Fund
As of 31 December 2017
the Deposit Protection Fund received

Premiums remitted by
financial institutions
to the Deposit Protection Fund
for the period of 1 Jan - 30 Jun 2017
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602
613

million
baht

Deposit Protection Agency

For the period of 1 Jul - 31 Dec 2017

million
baht

120,029

million
baht

In 2016, the amount of the Fund was
118,813 million baht.

Investment
Return for

2017

2,915

million
baht

Equivalent to
a rate of return of
per
annum

2.48%

In 2017, the Deposit Protection Fund received 602.44 million baht in premiums remitted by financial institutions for the period
of 1 January - 30 June 2017, and 613.27 million baht for the period of 1 July - 31 December 2017. As of 31 December 2017,
the amount of the Fund was 120.03 billion baht.
In terms of capital, the DPA was granted initial capital from the government upon the organization’s establishment in August
2008. According to Section 48 of the Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E. 2551 (2008), the Board of Directors shall allocate up
to half of the return of the Deposit Protection Fund after deducting the Fund’s management fees. In 2017, the Board of Directors
resolved to allocate a total of 636.00 million baht to the DPA – or 20.00 percent of the Deposit Protection Fund’s return in 2016.
This amount comprised two portions: 352.00 million baht to be used for normal operations, and 284.00 million baht to be used for
operations during a financial crisis. As of the end of December 2017, the DPA had capital of 6.44 billion baht.

2. Development of the Depositor Reimbursement System
Depositor reimbursement is one of the core missions that the DPA needs to fulfill efficiently. The original version
of the Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E. 2551 (2008) clearly states that once a financial institution’s license is
revoked, the DPA is obligated to notify depositors of the failed financial institution to request for compensation, and
it must proceed with reimbursing depositors within 30 days upon receipt and validation of depositors’ claims. To
accomplish this, the DPA developed two important systems: 1) the Depositor Reimbursement System (DRS) – used
for aggregating and calculating the amount of deposits to be reimbursed to each depositor in each financial institution,
and 2) the Depositor Reimbursement Operating System (DROS) – which handles and validates claims requests and
promptly reimburses depositors pursuant to the law.
The amendments of the Deposit Protection Agency Act, which came into effect on 13 December 2017, revised
the reimbursement procedures to repay depositors within 30 days from the date of the financial institution’s license
revocation without the need for depositors to file compensation claims. The reimbursed amount is equivalent to the
aggregated sum of deposits appearing in depositors’ bank accounts deducted by past-due or due debts that depositors
have with the failed financial institution. In addition, now that the amended law requires depositors to be notified with
a written document once compensation has been made, the DPA began the process of upgrading the DRS and
DROS to comply with this legal requirement.

To familiarize the DPA’s management and personnel with the depositor reimbursement procedures, the DPA
conducted a simulation where a financial institution’s license was revoked. The test results were then used to improve
operational procedures as well as preparedness and overall understanding of the organization’s mission.
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Moreover, to ensure that the DPA can swiftly aggregate and process depositor data for prompt reimbursement in
the event that a financial institution’s license is revoked as well as the readiness of financial institution staff in preparing
these depositor data files, the DPA conducted its annual test of the DRS for all member institutions. In addition, the
DPA collaborated with its agent bank in jointly conducting tests on depositor reimbursement to ensure the functionality
and efficiency of the designed systems.

3. Analyzing and Monitoring Financial Institutions’ Operating
Performance and Financial Position
In 2017, the DPA continued to place great importance on analyzing and monitoring the operating performance and financial
position of financial institutions in a systematic and efficient manner. To detect early signs of risk in financial institutions,
analyses of financial institutions were conducted on a consolidated basis by covering the subsidiaries and financial
businesses of financial institutions under the DPA’s protection – thereby enhancing preparedness to achieve its mission quickly
and effectively. In addition, the DPA also focused on engaging in research about guidelines for assessing financial institutions
from both Thai and international organizations in order to develop more efficient analysis tools and indicators for measuring
financial institution performance.
In addition to the activities above, the DPA also focused on monitoring economic conditions and changes in rules and
regulations which might affect the stability of financial institutions such as:
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1. Guidelines to identify and supervise Domestic Systemically Important Banks Large commercial banks have a high degree of
interconnectedness between financial institutions and the financial system, create complex financial products, and are the primary
service providers for financial products or critical infrastructure. If these large banks fail or become impaired, the resulting losses
may affect other financial institutions and eventually spread to the financial system and Thai economy. Based on these reasons,
the Bank of Thailand saw the significance and importance of imposing more stringent supervision on large commercial banks.
Thus, the Regulations on Supervision of Domestic Systemically Important Banks (D-SIBs) were adopted and require D-SIBs to
better absorb losses from their operations by maintaining an additional capital buffer of 0.5 percent of risk-weighted assets from
1 January 2019 and 1 percent of risk-weighted assets from 1 January 2020 onwards.

Capital Ratio Regulations for Commercial Banks
Additional capital buffer to
absorb losses required for
Domestic Systemically
Important Banks: D-SIBs*

0.50%
Conservation Buffer

1.25%

1.875%

2.50%

2.50%

8.50%

8.50%

8.50%

8.50%

8.50%

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

0.625%
Minimum Capital
Requirement BIS Ratio

1.00%

Remark: *Only applicable to Domestic Systemically Important Banks: D-SIBs

2. Regulations on Supervision of Finance Companies and Credit Foncier Companies The Bank of Thailand prescribed the supervisory
regulations requiring finance companies to maintain capital according to the Basel III framework in order to be able to absorb material
risks comprising credit risk, market risk, and operational risk. Under these regulations, finance companies are required to maintain
a common equity Tier 1 ratio of at least 4.5 percent, Tier-1 ratio of at least 6 percent, and total capital ratio of at least 8.5 percent.
On the other hand, credit foncier companies are required to maintain capital for the absorption of material risks, namely asset
risks and operational risk, and must maintain a total capital ratio of at least 8.5 percent. Both finance companies and credit foncier
companies must also maintain a conservation buffer and countercyclical buffer to mitigate overheating during economic booms
and provide support during economic downturns. Moreover, from 1 July 2017 onwards, finance companies and credit foncier
companies must maintain a liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) of at least 70 percent, and this figure will be gradually increased
10 percent every year until the LCR is at least 100 percent in 2020. Since these institutions are part of the Thai financial institution
system tasked with providing deposit and lending services, they are deemed essential to the development of the Thai economy.
Therefore, the failure of finance companies and credit foncier companies to compensate depositors and creditors may have negative
repercussions on depositors’ confidence in these institutions and subsequently affect their operations to the point of failure.

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) Regulations
Commercial Banks

≥ 60%

≥ 70%

≥ 80%

≥ 90%

≥ 100%

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Finance Companies and Credit Foncier Companies

≥ 70%

≥ 80%

≥ 90%

≥ 100%

2017

2018

2019

2020

Remark: *LCR regulations effective as of 1 July 2017 onwards

As a result, the DPA conducted a study on how to enhance its Data Management System to align with the Bank of Thailand’s
regulations as well as to develop more efficient analysis tools and indicators for measuring financial institution performance
according to these criteria.
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4. Risk Management, Governance and Audit
The DPA places great importance on carrying out its operations based on good governance principles by taking into
consideration potential impacts on stakeholders. Thus, the Board of Directors established that operational risk management
should appropriately oversee the organization’s critical risks as well as proper internal controls to ensure effective management.

Risk Management
The COSO Enterprise Risk Management is utilized for managing risk in a systematic and integrated manner. Risk management
policies and procedures are constructed according to the international practices including risk identification and assessment,
preparation of risk management plans, and risk management monitoring, reporting, and reviews in addition to aligning risk
management with the corporate strategy based on the Balanced Scorecard principle. In 2017, key organizational risks such as
strategic risk, operational risk, financial risk, and compliance risk were properly managed within acceptable levels under the six
following risk management policies and frameworks:

6 Risk Management Policies and Frameworks in 2017
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1

2

3

4

5

6

Enterprise Risk Management Policy and
Framework To outline risk management
guidance based on a common standard across
the organization by interconnecting with the
DPA’s mission, strategic plan, and corporate
plan, as well as to identify Key Risk Indicators
that serve as monitoring and early warning
tools for risks and risk factors that might affect
the DPA.

Liquidity Risk Management Policy and
Framework To ensure sufficient liquidity and
readiness for timely deposit reimbursement
as stipulated by law, while also ensuring that
the DPA has sufficient capital to continue its
operations in the long-term.

Operational Risk Management for Deposit
Protection To prevent and mitigate the
impacts of operational risk management
for deposit protection, ensuring that the
DPA’s risk levels are within the appropriate
risk appetite.

IT Security Risk Management Policy and
Framework To ensure the integrity,
confidentiality, and availability of the DPA’s
IT systems.

Investment Risk Management Policy and
Framework To efficiently manage
investment risk that includes compliance
risk, credit risk, market risk, and liquidity
risk.

Business Continuity Risk Management
Policy and Framework To ensure that the
DPA can maintain key operations in the
event of any disruptions, or to resume
operations within an appropriate timeline
once the disruption is over.

In 2017, the DPA carried out its risk management under the risk management policies and framework set by
the Board of Directors. It conducted its annual review of its policies, plans, and guidelines on risk management,
as well as conducted its yearly risk assessment. Moreover, the DPA monitored and reported its risks to executive
management, the Risk Management Sub-Committee, and Board of Directors on a continuous basis. It also organized
activities to encourage personnel and management to recognize the importance of consistent risk management and
internal controls and to create a good risk management culture within the organization.
For enterprise risk management, the DPA revised its enterprise risk to account for the amended Deposit
Protection Agency Act while aligning it with the DPA’s strategic plan at the strategic, tactical, and operation levels
based on Balanced Scorecard concept. Risk management plans were created for any risks which were not within
acceptable limits. Furthermore, the DPA also monitored and prepared quantitative and qualitative risk management
reports such as risk management progress reports and Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) to serve as an Early Warning System.
For IT security risk management, the DPA conducted its annual assessment and review, and referred to ISO
27001 and ISO 27005 as guidance for establishing policies and procedures for critical systems, resulting in IT data
management in compliance with the Confidentiality, Integrity, and Availability triad.

As in previous years, a Control Self-Assessment was included as part of every department’s risk and internal
control assessment to develop an effective operational risk management system. The results were then used to
improve and enhance operations.

Governance and Audit
The DPA is committed to carrying out its operations with transparency, integrity, and fairness in accordance
with good governance principles while taking into account opinions from all relevant stakeholders. The governance
framework for the Board of Directors, management, and employees was established and published on the DPA’s
website (www.dpa.or.th) as follows:
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Regarding business continuity management, a call tree simulation was conducted together with the annual
contingency plan simulation at the alternate site, where all departments with critical business functions participated
in the rehearsal. The DPA also included a test on the operational recovery plan for the Depositor Reimbursement
System to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the business continuity plans for both normal situations and
in times of crises.

1

2

Accountability

Code of
Conduct
and Code of
Ethics

7

Responsibility

Governance
Framework

Vision to
Creation of
Long Term Value

6

Equitable
Treatment

Transparency

4

Internal Control
and Internal
Audit
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5

Additionally, the DPA designated an internal agent responsible for handling complaints or suggestions from stakeholders
affected by the DPA’s operations. With the intention of establishing confidence among its staff and stakeholders in using the
whistle-blowing system, several channels for complaints were set up. At the same time, this should also promote stakeholder
confidence in terms of protection, confidentiality, and/or identity protection.

E-mail: ccd@dpa.or.th
Call Center Telephone
Number
0 2272 0300

1158

Postal Mail

Deposit Protection Agency
SJ Infinite I Business Complex,
25 - 27th Fl., 349 Vibhavadi
Rangsit Road, Chompol,
Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900

The DPA placed great importance on internal control
and internal audit to enhance the quality and trustworthiness
of its operations. Workflows and manuals were formalized
to assure standardized and credible operations. Trainings
were also continuously encouraged for management and
employees to increase the knowledge necessary and related
to operations. The Internal Audit Department conducted an
assessment to determine the appropriateness of supervision,
and risk management and internal control, including IT security
in accordance with international operational frameworks.
It also included an assessment on the activities performed by
external parties. The Internal Audit Department performed
its duties independently and was not involved in daily operations
as prescribed in the scope of audit, and the internal auditor
reported directly to the Audit Sub-Committee.

5. Communications and Public Relations

Media Relations and Broadcasting Medium

Social Media
(Facebook and
YouTube)

Brochures with
Augmented
Reality

Academic
Seminars

Train the Trainer
Program

Press Release
Event for the
DPA’s Operating
Results

Special
Interviews with
Executive
Management
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The DPA’s 2017 corporate plan set out to continuously raise public awareness about the deposit protection system. To achieve
this, the DPA developed and produced media content in multiple formats in order to reach a wider audience.
In 2017, the DPA added a new communications channel in the form of social media, particularly Facebook and YouTube. These
social media platforms were chosen as they continue to play an increasingly important role in the lifestyles of the newer generation in
keeping up-to-date and searching for information. For Facebook, the DPA created an official Facebook page called @DPAThailand
as a means of providing information about deposit protection and financial literacy. At the same time, the DPA set up an official
YouTube channel to publish informational videos for the purpose of educating the public. In addition, the DPA also incorporated
Augment Reality (AR) into its brochures so that readers may view animated videos associated with the content, helping them to
more easily understand the key points of deposit protection and the benefits for depositors.
The DPA continued to organize academic seminars all over the country for the public as well as send representatives to present
at various organizations. A total of 13 seminars about deposit protection and financial consumer protection were held in collaboration
with various agencies such as the Ministry of Finance, Bank of Thailand, National Savings Fund, and the National Credit Bureau. The
target audience consisted of the public, business sector, and provincial administrations in the provinces of Chiang Mai, Phitsanulok,
Chonburi, Nakhon Ratchasima, Chiang Rai, Samut Songkhram, Nakhon Si Thammarat, Phatthalung, Roi Et, Phichit, and Ratchaburi.
This year, the DPA also included additional target groups such as army officers and staff at the Infantry Center in Pranburi. Another
event which receives much interest every year is the Train the Trainer program for staff of the 35 financial institutions under the
DPA’s coverage. In 2017, the DPA hosted a total of 3 workshops in May, August, and December. The intent of this workshop was to
educate participants about the deposit protection system and the DPA’s operations in both normal conditions and times of financial
crises. In turn, these participants would then be able to act as multipliers within their respective organizations as well as to provide
accurate information for general depositors about the deposit protection system.
Moreover, the DPA also produced a 30-second radio advertisement and a 60-second radio documentary which were broadcasted
throughout the country by the state-owned public broadcaster, MCOT, via its FM100.5 News Network and FM 95 channels, as well
as radio channels under the Public Relations Department. These initiatives were created to improve awareness and understanding
about the DPA’s mission and the deposit protection system. Public response has been well-received, resulting in a larger amount
of telephone inquiries about the deposit protection criteria.

6. Enhancing Cooperation and Collaboration
In 2017, the DPA continued to enhance cooperation and collaboration at the international level. It attended international
meetings and conferences, and hosted various activities regarding deposit protection in order to exchange knowledge between
countries for the betterment of the deposit protection system’s development. The DPA participated in or hosted the following events:

1) International Meetings and Conferences
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1.1 15th IADI APRC Annual Meeting, Regional Workshop and International Conference
DPA representatives attended the 15th IADI APRC Annual Meeting, Regional Workshop and International Conference from
17 - 20 July 2017 in Yogyakarta, Indonesia. Knowledge-sharing sessions were held about best practices for enhancing
the deposit protection system. Other issues such as bank resolution and crisis preparedness challenges between financial
safety net players were also addressed.
1.2 16th IADI Annual General Meeting and Annual Conference
The DPA attended the 16th IADI Annual General Meeting and Annual Conference from 8 - 13 October 2017 in Quebec, Canada
under the theme of “Deposit Insurance for All – Adapting the Core Principles to Different Structures, Mandates and Types of
Institutions”. Other than the issues of applying the IADI Core Principles to other types of financial institutions such as credit
cooperatives and the roles and mandates of deposit insurers, the seminar also discussed the importance of financial inclusion
and the role deposit insurance plays in enhancing it.
1.3		KDIC Global Training Program 2017
A delegation from the DPA attended the KDIC Global Training Program from 20 - 23 June 2017 at the KDIC Global Academy
in South Korea under the topic of “One Asia with KDIC”. Presentations and discussions were held about deposit insurance in
an ever-changing environment, impacts from financial technology, and the roles of financial safety-net members.

2) Knowledge Exchange Activities about Deposit Protection
2.1 Knowledge-Sharing Seminar on “Reimbursing Depositors and Liquidating Failed Financial Institutions in South Korea”
The DPA hosted this knowledge-sharing seminar from 29 - 30 March 2017. Guest speakers from the KDIC were invited to
share their knowledge and experiences in resolving failing banks, reimbursing depositors, and liquidation and asset management
in South Korea
2.2 Study Visit for the Depositor Protection Fund of Laos The DPA organized a study visit for a delegate from the Depositor
Protection Fund of Laos from 5 - 9 June 2017 in Bangkok, Thailand. Topics discussed include how the DPA creates its
corporate strategy and research papers, as well as preparations on how to become an IADI member.
2.3 Overview of the Thai Deposit Protection Scheme for the National Bank of Cambodia Representatives from the DPA and
the Bank of Thailand were invited to present at a knowledge-sharing seminar hosted by the National Bank of Cambodia on
25 May 2017 in Phnom Penh, Cambodia. The DPA’s portion of the presentation consisted of providing an overview of the
Thai deposit protection scheme.

7. Organizational and Human Resources Management
The DPA’s organizational management focuses on addressing its vision of being an efficient and reliable organization that
promotes the stability of the financial institution system, particularly for creating public confidence in saving money and utilizing the
services of financial institutions. To attain this, the DPA continued to develop the capacity of its staff as human resources is a critical
factor in successfully driving the organization to success. In addition, the DPA initiated preparations for its transition into a digital
organization based on the 2017 - 2021 Strategic Plan and began revising operational procedures to incorporate digital technologies
to improve efficiency as well as adapting employees’ mindsets to using technology via knowledge and skills training.

Promoting Core Values

Personnel development
The DPA has a personnel development and training road map in place to continuously improve skill sets that are crucial
to the organization’s operations. Specifically, the three main areas of development consist of knowledge, skills, and competency.
The 2017 personnel development and training plan are explained in more detail below:

1. Knowledge Development

To increase vital knowledge related to the deposit protection system, and reimbursement and
liquidation processes both domestically and internationally. Training in this area included
workshops on the topics of financial institution businesses, foreign deposit insurance systems,
liquidation, finance and banking laws, asset management, and overviews about information
technology.

2. Skills Development

To obtain skills required for staff to fulfill their duties and prepare them for both
normal situations and times of crises.

3. Competency Development

The DPA defined a set of competencies for each position, and all staff must
undergo training to ensure that these competencies are met in order to
effectively fulfill their duties. The following details highlight the three types of
competencies:
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The DPA’s Core Values are the organization’s fundamental beliefs which serve as the basis for employee practice guidelines.
At the same time, it aims to create a culture that is able to support the organization towards its goals as well as a healthy and
positive working environment. In this regard, the DPA organized activities to promote and strengthen its core values through the
work of the Core Value Team, which comprises representatives from all departments. The DPA’s core values consist of the following:
1. Trustworthiness: Fulfill our duties responsibly and professionally to create confidence and trust among stakeholders.
2. Integrity: Complete our mission with honesty, ethics, equality, transparency, and accountability.
3. Synergy: Collaborate and cooperate in an enthusiastic manner to achieve results far beyond the sum of its parts.
4. Social mind: Emphasize and be mindful of social impacts for the benefit of the public and society.
Apart from these activities, the DPA conducted its annual employee satisfaction survey to obtain employee comments and
opinions and used the results to further improve engagement

1

2

3

Core Competency

Functional Competency

Managerial Competency

These competencies consist
of teamwork, effective
communications, analytical
thinking, and self-development,
and are requirements for all
employees.

These competencies are defined
specifically for staff up to the level
of Vice Presidents, and are different
based on the tasks, roles, and
responsibilities of each department,
e.g. the Planning and Research
Department’s functional
competencies consist of effective
planning and management,
creativity, commitment and
determination to achieving specified
goals, and networking.

These competencies are for
management positions (Vice
Presidents and higher), and
comprise leadership, strategic
planning and development,
performance management, and
developing others.

Furthermore, a training seminar called “DPA School” was held to inform employees about the DPA’s mission in order to help
them truly understand the DPA’s mission. An employee engagement survey was also conducted in order to retain high-quality
employees.

Employee Statistics as of 2017
Number of
Employees
Gender
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Male

34

49.28%

Female

50.72%

Bachelor’s
Degree

Qualifications

69

17.39%

12

Master’s
Degree
Ph.D.

35

81.16%
1.45%

1
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DPA
WHO
IS

1

Who protects your deposits?
The Deposit Protection Agency
(DPA) is a government agency that
was established in 2008 under the
Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E.
2551 (2008) with the objective of
reimbursing depositors within the
amount and time frame stipulated
in legislation.

Commercial
Banks

2

Which financial
institutions are
protected?

Credit Foncier
Companies

Financial institutions protected by the DPA
consist of 30 commercial banks, 2 finance
companies, and 3 credit foncier companies.
Scan QR Code
of the list of
financial institutions
protected by the DPA.
The DPA Symbol Displayed
at Member Financial Institutions

What is protected?
Automatic Protection

3

As soon as a Thai baht deposit account is
opened at a member financial institution
– regardless of whether it is a current
account, savings account, fixed account,
certificates of deposits, and deposit receipts
– all deposits are covered automatically.
Depositors do not need to do anything to
receive protection.

Current
Account

Savings
Account

Fixed
Account

Certificates of
Deposits

Deposit
Receipts
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4

What happens if a financial
institution is closed?

Once a financial institution is closed,
the DPA will reimburse depositors
as quickly as possible within the
amount and time frame stipulated in
legislation. Depositors will receive
their insured deposits within 30 days
and do not need to file reimbursement
claims.

Closed Down

Where does the
reimbursement money
come from?
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5

Money used to reimburse depositors
comes from the Deposit Protection
Fund, which is funded by commercial
banks, finance companies, and credit
foncier companies. The DPA collects
this money to ensure that depositors
can be compensated if a financial
institution is closed. The coverage
limit is defined in legislation.

6

Current Coverage Limit

What is the coverage limit?

15

10

11 Aug 2016 10 Aug 2018

11 Aug 2018 10 Aug 2019

Million
Baht

5

Million
Baht

Million
Baht

11 Aug 2019 10 Aug 2020

1

Million
Baht

11 Aug 2020 Onward

The coverage limit covers one depositor
per financial institution – where all of his
or her protected accounts (at all branches)
are aggregated into a final figure. For
deposit amounts exceeding the coverage
limit, depositors may make claims from
the liquidator once the liquidation process
is finished.

Website: www.dpa.or.th
E-mail: ccd@dpa.or.th
Contact Details

7

For more information, visit the
website, contact the call center, send
an email or leave a message on the
DPA’s official Facebook page.

Call Center Telephone Number

1158

0 2272 0300

@DPAThailand
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ACTIVITIES
IN 2017

Cooperation with Foreign Deposit Insurers

Guest speakers from the Korea
Deposit Insurance Corporation were
invited to present in a knowledgesharing seminar held by the DPA
on the topic of “Reimbursing
Depositors and Liquidating Failed
Financial Institutions in South
Korea”.
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The DPA hosted a study visit for staff
from the National Bank of Cambodia
on the topic of “Deposit Protection
Scheme”.

The DPA hosted a study visit for
staff from the Depositor Protection
Fund of Laos about the role of the
Planning and Research Department
and how to prepare for being
a member of the International
Association of Deposit Insurers.

Knowledge Sharing Activities about Deposit Protection Scheme
for the Public and Other Organizations

The DPA organized the 2017 press event to highlight its
achievements.

The DPA was invited to present at the Bank of Thailand’s training
workshop on “CLMVT Banker’s Leadership Program”.
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The DPA hosted a workshop for member financial institutions
on how to use the Electronic Files Management System.

Management interviews were organized for the media.

The DPA held a seminar about deposit protection and financial
consumer protection for the public, business sector, and
provincial administrations.

The DPA hosted training sessions for member financial
institutions’ staff under the Train the Trainer program.

Memorandum of Understanding Signings

A Memorandum of Understanding signing ceremony was held
between the DPA and Sukhumvit Asset Management (SAM).

A Memorandum of Understanding signing ceremony was held
between the DPA and Bank for Agriculture and Agricultural
Cooperatives (BAAC).

Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
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Supporting the cross-country marathon charity run for 11
hospitals all over the country.

Supporting the Highway Police Division and providing them with
bottled water during Songkran.

Donating to the Thai Red Cross Society to help people in the
South with flooding.

Supporting the Department of Highways and providing them
with bottled water.

Internal Activities

Offering sandalwood flowers in homage to H.M. the Late King
Bhumibol Adulyadej

Annual simulation of the DPA’s duties and responsibilities
during a financial crisis.
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Annual testing of the DPA’s Business Continuity Plan.

Making merit on the anniversary of the DPA’s establishment.
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Report of the Audit Sub-Committee
The Audit Sub-Committee consists of the Chairperson and 4 other members
appointed by the DPA’s Board of Directors. The Sub-Committee members include
Mr. Ronadol Numnonda, a Board member who serves as the Audit Sub-Committee Chairperson,
and Miss Pattanant Petchchedchoo, Mrs. Danuja Kunpanitchakit and Mrs. Povongtip Poramapojn,
who serve as sub-committee members with expertise in accounting, risk management, and
information technology (IT). Ms. Sirikul Rojanakeratikan, Vice President of the Internal Audit
Department, serves as the Secretary of the Audit Sub-Committee.
The Audit Sub-Committee performed its duties in supervising the DPA’s
operations to ensure efficiency and effectiveness as well as promoting good corporate
governance. The Sub-Committee also aimed to ensure the accuracy and reliability of financial
reports, internal controls, risk management, internal audit, and compliance with relevant laws,
rules, and regulations. Furthermore, the Audit Sub-Committee also fulfilled its duties
independently under the roles and responsibilities as prescribed in the Audit Sub-Committee
Charter. Eight meetings were held in 2017 – with management and external auditors joining
where relevant. Quarterly performance reports were also presented to the Board of Directors.
The main duties of the Audit Sub-Committee can be summarized as follows:
1. Review of Financial Statements – the Audit Sub-Committee reviewed the
quarterly financial statements and operating results prior to proposing them to the DPA’s Board
of Directors. For the annual financial statements audited by the Office of the Auditor General of
Thailand, the DPA management and auditors were invited to attend a meeting before granting
approval. Material issues such as the amendments to accounting entries and the appropriate
accounting procedures were discussed during the meeting in which the Audit Sub-Committee
received the clarification from the auditors and the Head of Finance and Accounting
Department to certify the material presence, accuracy, and reliability of the financial statement
and disclosures preparation according to generally accepted accounting standards. This also
ensures the recognition of the scope of limitation on operation which in turn will contribute to
the independency of the auditors.
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2. Review of Risk Management and Internal Controls (inclusive of IT security
based on international standards) – the Audit Sub-Committee reviewed the DPA’s risk
management policy and adequacy of internal controls according to the State Audit Council’s
(SAC) regulations. It also reviewed Independent Assessment report of the internal auditors,
considered the Feasibility Study on Block Leave, prepared the audit report on IT security
management system, and reviewed the DPA’s investment reports and investment risks. From
these reviews, it was found that the DPA had adequate risk management and internal controls,
which ensured that the DPA would be able to achieve its goals effectively and efficiently.
3. Good Corporate Governance – the Audit Sub-Committee reviewed the
results of the DPA’s corporate governance to ensure its compliance with relevant rules,
regulations, operational methods, notifications, orders, and laws by referring to the
Internal Audit Division’s internal audit report. Meetings with DPA management were held if
certain issues required further clarification.
4. Internal Audit – the Audit Sub-Committee approved the revised Internal Audit
Department Charter in terms of appropriated responsibilities and independent operations. It
also granted approval on the annual and long-term audit plans as well as the annual budget. In
addition, the Sub-Committee also enhanced the skills and competencies of the internal auditor
by encouraging the enrollment on the IT audit training. The IT security management system
internal auditing manual and the IT security management system improvement and nonconformity prevention manuals were reviewed. Finally, the Audit Sub-Committee considered
the internal audit result report prepared by the Internal Audit Department and monitored the
major corrections.
5. Other duties – in 2017, the Audit Sub-Committee revised the Audit SubCommittee Charter and extended its power to consider hiring a consultant or expert to advise
or assist the operations of the Sub-Committee or the internal audit department as it may deem
necessary and appropriate. In addition, the Sub-Committee also updated its annual
performance self-assessment to distinctively reflect the qualitative aspects.

In summary, the Audit Sub-Committee performed its duties independently under
the roles and responsibilities prescribed in the Audit Sub-Committee Charter. It is of the opinion
that the financial statements were found to be accurate and reliable in accordance with Thai
Financial Reporting Standards. In addition, risk management was adequate with effective
internal controls, internal audit practices were independent and covered high-risk operations,
and internal audit procedures were consistent with generally accepted auditing standards.
Finally, the Audit Sub-Committee provided recommendations to the management and related
parties to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of the DPA’s operations.
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(Signed)
(Mr. Ronadol Numnonda)
Chairperson, Audit Sub-Committee

AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors

Office of the Auditor General of Thailand

63
Annual Report 2017

Opinion
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has audited the financial statements of the Deposit
Protection Agency, which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2017, the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.
In the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Deposit Protection Agency as of December 31, 2017, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards.
Basis for Opinion
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand conducted the audit in accordance with Thai Standards
on Auditing. The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of the Office of
the Auditor General of Thailand’s report. The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand is independent of the
Deposit Protection Agency in accordance with the State Audit Standards issued by the State Audit
Commission and the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants determined by the Federation of
Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage of His Majesty the King that are relevant to the audit of
the financial statements, and the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these standards and requirements. The Office of the Auditor General of
Thailand believes that the audit evidence the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion.
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and the auditor’s report
thereon. Management expects to provide the annual report to the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand
after the date of this auditor’s report.
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with the audit of the financial statements, the Office of the Auditor General of
Thailand’s responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s knowledge obtained in audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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When the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand reads the annual report, if the Office of the
Auditor General of Thailand concludes that there is a material misstatement therein, the Office of the
Auditor General of Thailand is required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Deposit Protection
Agency’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Deposit
Protection Agency or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Deposit Protection Agency’s
financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
As part of the audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, the Office of the Auditor General
of Thailand exercises professional judgment and maintains professional skepticism throughout the audit. The
Office of the Auditor General of Thailand also:
• Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtains audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the Office of the Auditor General of
Thailand’s opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
• Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Deposit Protection Agency’s internal control.
Office of the Auditor General of Thailand
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(Signed) Chitra Mekapongpan
(Mrs. Chitra Mekapongpan)
Director of Financial Audit Office No. 3
(Signed)

Office of the Auditor General of Thailand
April 30, 2018

Satawat Bunkoi
(Mr. Satawat Bunkoi)
Auditor In-charge
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• Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
• Concludes on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Deposit Protection Agency’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand concludes that a material uncertainty exists, the
Office of the Auditor General of Thailand is required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the Office of the
Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion. The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report of the Office of the Auditor General of
Thailand. However, future events or conditions may cause the Deposit Protection Agency to cease to
continue as a going concern.
• Evaluates the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand communicates with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand
identifies during the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s audit.
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2017

Unit : Baht
2016

Assets
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Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Temporary investments
Premiums receivable from financial institutions
Receivables and accrued income
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Long-term investments
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5

22,673,551
8,890,838,632
613,274,143
941,499,026
374,257
10,468,659,609

23,590,828
29,504,947,799
591,257,219
952,881,057
693,220
31,073,370,123

6.6
6.7
6.8

116,073,957,838
92,392,731
42,368,824
116,208,719,393
126,677,379,002

91,345,651,476
107,785,897
22,719,495
1,100
91,476,157,968
122,549,528,091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements .
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Unit : Baht
2016

Note

2017

6.9
6.10

161,310,195
6,519,422
167,829,617

22,535,901
4,045,498
26,581,399

6.11

41,151,788
41,151,788
208,981,405

47,424,411
47,424,411
74,005,810

6.13
6.14
6.15

242,307,755
97,689,206
120,029,314,354

242,307,755
97,689,206
116,596,321,380

6.16
6.17

150,000,000
3,605,983,719
2,343,102,563
126,468,397,597
126,677,379,002

150,000,000
3,321,983,719
2,067,220,221
122,475,522,281
122,549,528,091

Liabilities and equity

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements .

(Mr. Satorn Topothai)
President

(Mr. Wichet Rojanasukarn)
Vice President, Finance and Accounting Department
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Current liabilities
Payables and accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Initial capital
Fund allocated by the government
Deposit Protection Fund
Retained earnings
Allocated funds
For emergency operations
For operations during financial crisis
Unallocated fund
Total equity

6
Deposit Protection Agency
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2017
Note
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Deposit Protection Agency (DPA)'s performance
Revenues
Interest income
Income from allocation of the DPF's earnings
Fund management fee
Fine income under purchase contracts
Gain on disposal of assets
Total revenues
Expenses
Personnel expenses
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Remunerations of the board members and executives

111,847,555
636,000,000
59,169,525
3,212
527,698
807,547,990

100,269,796
1,321,000,000
57,736,917
145,213
640,760
1,479,792,686

6.19
6.20

126,909,462
70,867,016
37,746,905

115,372,641
69,145,271
36,500,561

6.21

12,142,265
247,665,648
559,882,342

13,169,279
234,187,752
1,245,604,934

1,215,712,763
2,915,393,665
100
4,131,106,528

1,180,614,558
3,249,118,671
4,429,733,229

59,169,525
636,000,000
2,944,029
698,113,554
3,432,992,974
3,992,875,316
3,992,875,316

57,736,917
1,321,000,000
6,270,725
1,385,007,642
3,044,725,587
4,290,330,521
4,290,330,521

6.18
6.15.2

Total expenses
Net income of DPA
Deposit Protection Fund (DPF)'s performance
Revenues
Premiums from financial institutions
Interest Income
Other income
Total revenues
Expenses
Fund management fee
Allocation of the DPF's earnings to the DPA
Finance costs
Total expenses
Net income of DPF
Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

2017

Unit : Baht
2016
(Restated)

6.15.2
6.18

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements .

Balance brought forward as at January 1, 2016 (restated)
Changes during the year
Total comprehensive income
Allocation for operations during financial crisis
Balance as of December 31, 2016
Balance brought forward as of January 1, 2017
Changes during the year
Total comprehensive income
Allocation for operations during financial crisis
Balance as of December 31, 2017

Note

97,689,206
97,689,206
97,689,206

242,307,755
242,307,755
242,307,755

Annual Report 2017

97,689,206

242,307,755
150,000,000
150,000,000
150,000,000

3,432,992,974
120,029,314,354

284,000,000.00
3,605,983,719

978,000,000
3,321,983,719
3,321,983,719

559,882,342
(284,000,000.00)
2,343,102,563

1,245,604,934
(978,000,000)
2,067,220,221
2,067,220,221

Retained Earnings
Unallocated funds
Allocated funds
For emergency For operations
during
operations
financial crisis
150,000,000
2,343,983,719
1,799,615,287

3,044,725,587
116,596,321,380
116,596,321,380

113,551,595,793

Initial capital Fund allocated Deposit Protection
Fund
by the
government

Deposit Protection Agency
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2017
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3,992,875,316
126,468,397,597

4,290,330,521
122,475,522,281
122,475,522,281

118,185,191,760

Unit : Baht
Total

8
Deposit Protection Agency
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2017
2017
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Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from (used in)
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Employee benefit expenses
Interest income
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of assets
Cash received from operating activities
Interest recieved
Interest paid
Net income from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Premiums receivable from financial institutions
Advance payments
Prepaid expenses
Other receivable
Disposable supplies
Other current assets
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Revenue department payables
Accrued expenses
Other payable
Accrued rental expenses
Contract deposits
Provision for litigation cost
Provision for employee benefits
Net cash from operating activities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements .

Unit : Baht
2016
(Restated)

3,992,875,316

4,290,330,521

37,746,905
3,896,172
(2,802,366,659)
2,944,029
(527,698)
1,234,568,065
3,038,589,297
(2,944,029)

36,500,561
3,624,505
(3,176,479,047)
6,270,725
(640,760)
1,159,606,505
3,731,909,132
(6,270,725)

4,270,213,333

4,885,244,912

(22,016,924)
20,000
11,835
2,120
318,963
1,100

(15,503,059)
36,500
239,802
453
(25,780)
197,950

(177,120)
11,873,074
10,800
958,338
2,473,924
(10,657,303)
(10,597)
4,253,021,543

(386,434)
(7,672,516)
26,600
958,338
2,239,128
4,865,355,894

9
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for investment in fixed deposits
Proceeds from matured fixed deposits
Cash paid for investment in treasury bills
Proceeds from matured treasury bills
Cash paid for investment in government bonds
Proceeds from matured government bonds
Cash paid for investment in Bank of Thailand bonds
Proceeds from matured Bank of Thailand bonds

(23,867,997,907)
26,821,723,518
(92,753,105)
93,000,000
(3,204,693,672)
643,000,000
(3,654,366,961)
4,134,000,000

(44,046,640,313)
42,187,527,952
(3,080,447,164)
2,000,000,000
(1,536,028,913)
3,914,000,000

Cash paid for investment in state enterprise bonds, guaranteed
by the Ministry of Finance

(1,667,019,933)

(11,011,087,295)

Proceeds from matured state enterprise bonds, guaranteed by
the Ministry of Finance

1,440,000,000

6,723,000,000

(4,863,645,872)
527,699
(16,454,016)
(19,258,571)
(4,253,938,820)
(917,277)
23,590,828
22,673,551

640,762
(34,760,056)
(3,851,778)
(4,887,646,805)
(22,290,911)
45,881,739
23,590,828

120,317,824
1,517,516
6,558,088

1,659,226
625,000

Cash paid for investment in state enterprise bonds, not
guaranteed by the Ministry of Finance
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Cash paid for acquisition of intangible assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
Supplemental cash flow information
Items not affecting cash flow
Payable for purchases of securities
Payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Payable for acquisition of intangible assets
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements .
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2017

Unit : Baht
2016
(Restated)

10
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1. General information
The Deposit Protection Agency (DPA) was established on August 11, 2008 under the Deposit
Protection Agency Act B.E. 2551 (2008), with the objectives of protecting deposits in insured financial
institutions, enhancing stability of the financial institution system, managing financial institutions under
control according to the Financial Institution Business Act, and liquidating failed financial institutions. The
Board of Directors is in charge of setting the DPA’s policy and supervising the DPA’s performance.
Section 47 of the Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E. 2551 (2008) mandates the establishment of
the Deposit Protection Fund, comprising premiums remitted by financial institutions, earnings of the
Deposit Protection Fund or assets acquired from the liquidation process, donated money or other
properties as well as borrowing funds specifically for reimbursing depositors in case of financial
institutions’ license revocation, payment of the fund management fee, and repayment of principals and
interest of loans.
The DPA office is located at 25-27th Floor, S.J. Infinite One Business Complex, 349 Vibhavadi
Rangsit Road, Chompol, Chatuchak, Bangkok.
2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
2.1 Financial statements
The DPA’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the financial reporting
standards under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543 (2000), including the accounting standards and the financial
reporting standards under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 (2004) and the interpretations of
accounting standards, the interpretations of financial reporting standards and the accounting guidelines
promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage of His Majesty the
King, on an accrual basis, and application of the historical cost basis to measure the elements of the
financial statements, unless specifically stated otherwise in the accounting policies.
Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on past experiences and other factors, including the expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
2.2 The Thai Accounting Standards (TAS), Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS), TSIC
Interpretations and TFRIC Interpretations announced but not yet effective
The Federation of Accounting Professions has announced the Thai Accounting Standards (TAS),
Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS), TSIC Interpretations and TFRIC Interpretations and Accounting
Guidelines, which are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018; therefore, the DPA has
not yet applied the following accounting standards and interpretations prior to the standards coming into
effect:

11

Presentation of Financial Statements
Inventories
Statement of Cash Flows
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Events after the Reporting Period
Construction Contracts
Income Taxes
Property, Plant and Equipment
Leases
Revenue
Employee Benefits
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Borrowing Costs
Related Party Disclosures
Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
Separate Financial Statements
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Earnings per Share
Interim Financial Reporting
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible assets
Investment Property
Agriculture

Financial Reporting Standards
TFRS 2 (revised 2017)
Share-based Payment
TFRS 3 (revised 2017)
Business Combinations
TFRS 4 (revised 2017)
Insurance Contracts
TFRS 5 (revised 2017)
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
TFRS 6 (revised 2017)
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
TFRS 8 (revised 2017)
Operating Segments
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Accounting Standards
TAS 1 (revised 2017)
TAS 2 (revised 2017)
TAS 7 (revised 2017)
TAS 8 (revised 2017)
TAS 10 (revised 2017)
TAS 11 (revised 2017)
TAS 12 (revised 2017)
TAS 16 (revised 2017)
TAS 17 (revised 2017)
TAS 18 (revised 2017)
TAS 19 (revised 2017)
TAS 20 (revised 2017)
TAS 21 (revised 2017)
TAS 23 (revised 2017)
TAS 24 (revised 2017)
TAS 26 (revised 2017)
TAS 27 (revised 2017)
TAS 28 (revised 2017)
TAS 29 (revised 2017)
TAS 33 (revised 2017)
TAS 34 (revised 2017)
TAS 37 (revised 2017)
TAS 38 (revised 2017)
TAS 40 (revised 2017)
TAS 41 (revised 2017)

12

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
TFRS 10 (revised 2017) Consolidated Financial Statements
TFRS 11 (revised 2017) Joint Arrangements
TFRS 12 (revised 2017) Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
TFRS 13 (revised 2017) Fair Value Measurement
Standard Interpretations
TSIC 10 (revised 2017) Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
TSIC 15 (revised 2017) Operating Leases - Incentives
TSIC 25 (revised 2017) Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders
TSIC 27 (revised 2017) Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease
TSIC 29 (revised 2017) Disclosures - Service Concession Arrangements
TSIC 31 (revised 2017) Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services
TSIC 32 (revised 2017) Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs

Deposit Protection Agency

74

Financial Reporting Interpretations
Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities
TFRIC 1 (revised 2017)
TFRIC 4 (revised 2017)
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
TFRIC 5 (revised 2017)
Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
TFRIC 7 (revised 2017)
Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29 (revised 2017) Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
TFRIC 10 (revised 2017) Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
TFRIC 12 (revised 2017) Service Concession Arrangements
TFRIC 13 (revised 2017) Customer Loyalty Programmes
TFRIC 14 (revised 2017) The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction under TAS 19 (revised 2017) Employee Benefits
TFRIC 15 (revised 2017) Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
TFRIC 17 (revised 2017) Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
TFRIC 18 (revised 2017) Transfers of Assets from Customers
TFRIC 20 (revised 2017) Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of Surface Mine
TFRIC 21 (revised 2017) Levies
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The DPA management has determined that the above accounting standards, financial reporting
standards, standard interpretations and financial reporting interpretations will not have a significant
impact on the financial statements being presented and some standards have been deemed not related
to the DPA’s operations.
3. Changes in accounting policies
Since 1 January 2017, the DPA has changed the presentation of the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income to report the results of the Deposit Protection Fund’s operations as a part
of the statement. The result of the Deposit Protection Fund’s operations was not reported on the prior
year’s statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the DPA. The change in the
presentation of financial statement was made to reflect the DPA’s overall financial performance more
clearly.
This change has no any effect on the statement of the financial position, as previously reported.
The DPA has restated the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2016, which is presented as comparative
information. The effects on the previously reported financial statements are further explained in Note
6.22.
4. Significant accounting policies
4.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents refer to cash, current accounts, savings accounts, checks pending for
collection, and fixed deposit accounts with an original maturity of 3 months or less, except for fixed
deposit accounts the DPA intends to roll over, which are classified as investments.
4.2 Investments
4.2.1 Classification of investments
Investments in bank deposits and debt instruments which the DPA intends to hold for a
period of not more than one year, are classified as temporary investments. Investments which the DPA
intends to hold for a period of more than one year are classified as long-term investments
4.2.2 Valuation of investments
Investments in debt securities classified as held-to-maturity are stated at the amortized
cost.
4.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
allowance for impairment of assets (if any).
The costs comprise any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the
initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located, the obligation for which the DPA incurs when the item is acquired.
The gain or loss arising from disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item,
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and shall be recognized on a net basis as revenues or expenses in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
Subsequent costs due to replacements are recognized as a part of the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment if it is probable that the DPA will obtain future economic benefits
associated with the replacements and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Costs of the repair and maintenance of property, plant and
equipment are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation is estimated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life. The DPA
has also recorded the renovation costs of its office premise as a leasehold improvement at historical cost
and depreciated over the leasehold period.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold improvement
6 years
Office equipment
5 years
Vehicles
5 years
Computers
5 years
No depreciation of assets is recognized during construction and installation.
4.4 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Amortization is calculated by using the straight-line method over the five-year
estimated useful life.
4.5 Claims for reimbursements to depositors
Claims for reimbursement to depositors occurs when the licenses of financial institutions are
revoked and the DPA proceeds with the reimbursement of depositors within the insured amount. The
DPA has the right to claim on the reimbursement amount from the specified receiver or liquidator
thereafter, as the case may be. The DPA has recognized the right to claim on the reimbursement as
receivables when it is probable that the DPA will receive those amounts from the receiver or liquidator.
4.6 Securities purchased under resale agreements/Securities sold under repurchase
agreements
The DPA signed the securities purchased under resale agreement, which specifies the resale
price at a designated future date. Securities purchased under resale agreements are presented as assets
on the statement of the financial position and recorded at the amount paid to purchase securities.
The difference between the purchase price and the sale price shall be recognized on an
accrual basis over the specified term as interest income.
In addition, the DPA signed the securities sold under repurchase agreement, which specifies
the repurchase price at a designated future date. Securities sold under resale agreements are presented
as liabilities on the statement of the financial position and recorded at the amount received from the
sale of securities.
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The difference between the selling price and purchase price shall be recognized on an accrual
basis over the specified term as financial costs.
4.7 Impairment
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at the end date of reporting period. If there is any
indication of impairment in value of the assets, the assets shall be estimated at the recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or the carrying amount of
its cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment losses shall be recorded
in profit or loss unless they reverse the previous revaluation credit to equity, in which cases they are
charged to equity.
4.8 Provisions
The DPA recognizes a provision where the DPA has a present obligation arising from a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources with economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount of obligation can be measured reliably. Provisions are discounted to the
present value of the future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and risks specific to the liability.
4.9 Employee benefits
The short-term employee benefits are recognized in the amount expected to be paid as
expenses in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when related employee’s
services were rendered.
The DPA has contributed to the provident fund for post-employment benefits and other longterm benefits for employees to which the employees are entitled to as follows:
4.9.1 Post-employment benefit plans (Defined contribution plans)
Pursuant to the DPA Regulation regarding Provident Fund for Employees B.E. 2552 (2009),
the DPA and its employees who are members of the provident fund shall make contributions to the
provident fund according to the established criteria. The DPA has registered its provident fund in
accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 (1987). The provident fund is managed by an external
entity and its assets are separate from the DPA’s assets. The DPA’s contributions are recognized as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the accounting period as
incurred.
4.9.2 Post-employment benefit plans (Defined benefit plans)
Defined benefit plans comprise compensation in case of termination of employment
without any wrongdoing of an employee, as well as retirement of an employee under the DPA
Regulation on Personnel Management B.E. 2560 (2017) dated December 15, 2017 and
post-employment medical plan under the DPA Regulation on Medical Treatment B.E. 2558 (2015) dated
March 6, 2015.
The obligations of defined benefit plan are estimated based on calculations performed by
an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method to estimate the present value of
obligations and recognized as expenses in profit or loss. The actuarial gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.
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4.10 Revenue recognition
The DPA recognizes its interest income using the effective interest rate method in accordance
with the proportionate of the period and recognizes premiums from financial institutions and other
incomes on an accrual basis.
4.11 Expense recognition
The DPA recognizes its expenses on an accrual basis.
4.12 Long-term lease
The lease of assets of which the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred
to the lessor will be classified as operating lease.
The DPA recognizes payments under operating lease and related service agreements as
expenses over lease term on straight-line basis.
5. Risk management policy
The DPA’s risk management governance structure is clearly defined, which comprises the Board
of Directors who approves the risk management policy framework and appoints the Risk Management
Sub-Committee in order to assist in screening and overseeing risk management in compliance with the
approved policy framework. The operational risk management is overseen by the DPA President, while
the Risk Management Department is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the policy
framework and the risk management process together with controlling, monitoring, and reporting on risk
management to the DPA management. This is to ensure that key risks that may affect DPA operations
have been identified and managed to be within acceptable levels.
The DPA risk management can be summarized as follows:
5.1 Financial risk management
The DPA Board of Director has appointed the Investment Sub-Committee to be responsible
for screening the investment policies prior to the Board approval together with formulating the DPA
investment strategy, overseeing and monitoring the investment as well as reporting to the Board. The
Treasury Department is responsible for investment management in compliance with the investment
policies pursuant to the framework stipulated in the Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E. 2551 (2008) as
follows:
Section 7 (5) the DPA shall invest in government bonds or debt securities where the principal
and interest are guaranteed by the government or invest in other types of securities as prescribed by the
Board and approved by the Minister.
Section 7 (6) the DPA shall deposit money in financial institutions or the Bank of Thailand or
specialized financial institutions for normal operations according to the rules, procedures, and conditions
as prescribed by the Board.
Section 27 No less than sixty percent of all investments specified under Section 7 (5) shall
be made in highly-secure securities as well as subject to the rules and procedures prescribed by the
ministerial regulations.
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The DPA is not exposed to the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates as the DPA invests in fixed deposits and debt
instruments within the country.
5.1.2 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the DPA’s counterparties may default on contractual
obligations under financial instruments, resulting in financial losses to the DPA.
Pursuant to its credit risk management policies, the DPA is required to invest in fixed
deposits with Specialized Financial Institutions (SFIs) or invest in highly-secure securities which include
treasury bills, government bonds, Bank of Thailand bonds, or debt securities where the principal and
interest are guaranteed by the Ministry of Finance. Moreover, in order to maintain an appropriate level of
credit risk, the DPA has determined a credit risk limit framework and credit limits of counterparties based
on their classification and credit ratings. The credit ratings are computed using statistical approaches
which include the probability of default by counterparties on contractual obligations and agreements,
the amount of contingent losses, and the amount of recoverable assets in order to control the DPA’s
credit risk within acceptable level
5.1.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk arising from situations where the DPA encounters difficulties in
obtaining adequate and timely fundraising in order to meet its contractual obligations. Liquidity risk may
arise from the DPA’s inability to timely liquidate financial assets at prices close to their fair value.
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5.1.1 Market risk
Market risk refers to the risk where the DPA may suffer losses from fluctuations in the
fair value or cash flow of the financial instruments resulting from changes in market prices, which
comprise as follows:
(1) Interest rate risk
The DPA invests in fixed deposits and debt instruments with fixed interest rates and
determines the appropriate average duration for investment portfolios and securities. The DPA has a
policy to hold its investments in fixed deposits and debt instruments until maturity. Therefore, changes
in the fair value of investments caused by interest rate fluctuations are not reflected in the financial
statements because the investments in held-to-maturity debt instruments are stated at amortized costs.
However, the DPA continues to monitor changes in the value of investments in case the DPA needs to
liquidate the investments at market price. In addition, the DPA determines risk indicators in accordance
with the value at risk approach in order to determine the status of contingent risk in case of selling or
reducing its securities holdings by setting a maximum ceiling limit to control risk within acceptable level.
(2) Equity risk
The DPA is not exposed to equity risk as it has no policy to invest in equity
instruments.
(3) Foreign exchange risk
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The DPA’s liquidity risk management policy focuses on appropriate levels of average
duration of investment portfolio and securities, including liquidity of securities trading or redemption and
the amount of losses incurred when securities are sold or redeemed before their maturity.
5.2 Other types of risk management
According to the COSO Enterprise Risk Management, the DPA has implemented an enterprise
risk management framework to manage risk in a systematic and integrated manner while ensuring
compliance with international practices. The enterprise risk management framework includes identifying,
assessing, and determining risk management plans as well as monitoring, reporting, and reviewing risk
management. It also links risk management with the DPA’s strategic plan using the Balanced Scorecard
concept. This system will contribute to the accomplishment of the DPA’s missions and objectives under
an acceptable risk appetite.
The DPA’s other types of risk management are detailed as follows:
5.2.1 Enterprise risk management
The DPA has developed an enterprise risk register, risk map, and risk management
plan, which are regularly reviewed on an annual basis to determine and manage significant risks that
affect the DPA’s operations. Moreover, the DPA also monitors risks and prepares risk reports on a
qualitative and quantitative basis consisting of, for instance, the status report of the risk management
plan and key risk indicators (KRIs) of significant risks that contribute to the development of an early
warning system for risk management.
5.2.2 Information security risk management
The DPA refers to ISO 27001 Information Security Management Standard and ISO
27005 Risk Management Standard as guidance for policy-setting and establishing procedures for critical
systems in order to continuously assess and revise information security risks. Consequently, this results in
managing information with integrity, confidentiality and availability.
5.2.3 Business continuity management
The DPA has developed a business continuity plan (BCP) at the organization and
department levels along with a crisis recovery plan; both plans have been annually revised and
simulated in order to ensure continuity of the DPA’s operations or recovery of business within an
appropriate timeframe after disruptions. The DPA also has an alternate site to enable uninterrupted
business operations whenever the primary site is unable to normally operate. In addition, a disaster
recovery site has been prepared for data backup and recovery during emergency scenarios and
unexpected incidents.
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5.2.4 Risk assessment and internal control
The Control Self-Assessment of the DPA includes the annual assessment of
operational risk and internal control of each department in order to develop a good operational risk
management system. Moreover, the DPA would be able to apply the assessment to enhance operational
processes for better efficiency and effectiveness.
6. Additional Information
6.1. Cash and cash equivalents:
Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
Cash and cash equivalents
Petty cash
0.06
0.06
Current account deposits
0.02
0.02
Savings account deposits
22.59
23.51
Total
22.67
23.59
6.2 Temporary investments:

Deposits at Specialized Financial Institutions
(Deposits due within 1 year)
2,697.55
26,815.89
Held-to-maturity debt instruments
SOE bonds guaranteed by the Ministry of Finance
due within 1 year
5,618.91
1,442.58
Government bonds due within 1 year
300.67
BOT bonds due within 1 year
574.38
945.81
Total
8,890.84
29,504.95
6.3 Premiums receivable from financial institutions
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, premiums receivable from financial institutions amounted
to 613.28 million baht and 591.26 million baht, respectively. Pursuant to the DPA Board of Directors’
Notification on Rules and Procedures for Calculating the Average Amount of Deposits
and Categories of Protected Deposits B.E. 2555 (2012), dated June 26, 2012, Section 6(2), financial
institutions shall remit two tranches of premiums to the Deposit Protection Fund each year; the first
tranche is for the period of January-June and the second tranche is for the period of July- December.
The remittance shall be made within the last business day of July of the same year and the last business
day of January of the following year, respectively.
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Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
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6.4 Receivables and accrued income:

Accrued interest income
Prepaid expenses
Advance payments
Other receivable
Total

Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
941.13
952.48
0.36
0.37
0.02
0.01
0.01
941.50
952.88

6.5 Other current assets:

Disposable supplies
Returnable deposits
Total

Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
0.32
0.64
0.05
0.05
0.37
0.69

6.6. Long-term investments:
Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
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Long-term investments
Deposits at Specialized Financial Institutions
(Deposits due over 1 year)
Held-to-maturity debt instruments
SOE bonds guaranteed by the Ministry of
Finance due over 1 year
SOE bonds not guaranteed by the Ministry of
Finance due over 1 year
Government bonds due over 1 year
BOT bonds due over 1 year
Total

60,939.24

39,774.62 - .

25,713.32

29,633.05.

4,862.66
24,558.74
- .
116,073.96

21,837.99
99.99
91,345.65
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6.7 Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment (cost)
Leasehold improvement
83.03
Office equipment
26.01
Vehicles
15.99
Computers
68.02
Total property, plant and equipment
193.05
Less Accumulated depreciation
Leasehold improvement
(14.39)
Office equipment
(17.24)
Vehicles
(9.84)
Computers
(43.80)
Total accumulated depreciation
(85.27)
Total property, plant and equipment 107.78
Depreciation
27.62

0.88
0.67
1.82
10.35
13.72
(14.25)
(2.62)
(3.18)
(9.06)
(29.11)
(15.39)

(1.75)
(1.75)

83.91
26.68
16.06
78.37
205.02

1.75
1.75
-

(28.64)
(19.86)
(11.27)
(52.86)
(112.63)
92.39
29.11

6.8 Intangible assets:
Balance
Increase
As at Dec 31, 2016
Intangible assets (cost)
Computer programs
Assets in progress
Total intangible assets
Less Accumulated amortization
Total intangible assets
Amortization

73.90
3.52
77.42
(54.70)
22.72
8.87

31.81
27.51
59.32
(8.64)
50.68

Unit: Million Baht
Decrease
Balance
As at Dec 31, 2017
(31.03)
(31.03)
(31.03)

105.71
- .
105.71
(63.34)
42.37
8.64
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Balance
Increase
As of Dec 31, 2016

Unit: Million Baht
Decrease
Balance
As of Dec 31, 2017
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6.9 Payables and accrued expenses:
Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
120.32
30.31
18.44
8.13
2.33
2.08
1.12
0.47
0.64
161.31
22.53

Payables from purchases of securities
Accrued Expenses
Other payables
Accrued rental expenses
Revenue department payable
Total
6.10 Other current liabilities:

Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
4.05
6.52
6.52
4.05

Contract deposits
Total
6.11 Provisions:

Unit: Million
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2017
Provision
for litigation
cost
Beginning balance
10.66
Add Increase during the year
Less Decrease during the year (10.66)
Total
-

Provision
for employee
benefits
18.90
3.90
(0.01)
22.79

Provision
Total
for demolition of
the rental office _________
17.86
47.42
0.50
4.40
(10.67)
18.36
41.15

6.11.1 Provision for litigation costs
The DPA has reimbursed the penalties charged on the two computer system procurement
contracts to the plaintiffs to the amount of 10.66 million baht based on the Supreme Administrative
Court’s decision.
6.11.2 Provision for employee benefits
As of December 31, 2017, provision for employee benefits is made for liabilities from
defined benefit plans which comprise compensation in case of termination of employment without any
wrongdoing of an employee, as well as retirement of an employee in accordance with the DPA
Regulation on Personnel Management B.E. 2560 (2017), and post-employment medical plan in
accordance with the DPA Regulation on Medical Treatment B.E. 2558 (2015).
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6.11.2 Provision for employee benefits (continued)

Amount recognized as expenses in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Current service cost
Interest cost
Total
Significant Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate
Salary increase rate
Medical cost increase rate
Employee turnover rate
Mortality rate

18.90

15.28

3.90
(0.01)
22.79

3.62
- .
18.90

2017

Unit: Million Baht
2016

3.28
0.62
3.90

3.12
0.50
3.62

3.0% - 3.9%
8.0%
8.0%
0.0% - 15.0%
Thai Mortality Table 2008

The assumption for inflation rate is 3% per annum. However, the inflation rate is not used to
estimate the provision of employee benefits directly. Rather, it is used as one of the factors in analyzing
and determining salary increase rate assumptions.
Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes as of December 31, 2017 to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would affect the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below:
Unit: Million Baht
Effects on increase (decrease) of estimated employee benefit obligations
2017
Increased discount rate by 1%
(3.09)
Decreased discount rate by 1%
4.26
Increased salary increase rate by 1%
1.58
Decreased salary increase rate by 1%
(1.40)
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Changes in present value of employee benefit obligations
during period
Balance as of January 1
Benefit recognized as expenses in statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income
Actual benefit incurred
Balance as of December 31

2017

Unit: Million Baht
2016
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6.11.2 Provision for employee benefits (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis (continued)
Unit: Million Baht
Effects on increase (decrease) of estimated employee benefit obligations
2017
Increased medical cost increase rate by 1%
2.93
Decreased medical cost increase rate by 1%
(1.97)
Increased employee turnover rate by 20%
(2.69)
Decreased employee turnover rate by 20%
3.53
Increased mortality rate by 1%
1.78
Decreased mortality rate by 1%
(1.62)
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6.11.3 Provision for demolition of the rental office
The DPA signed a contract with WHA Business Complex Freehold and Leasehold Real
Estate Investment Trust for leasing an office space on the 25th - 27th floors of S.J. Infinite One Business
Complex Building. According to the contract, upon the end of tenancy, the DPA shall restore the office
space to its original condition before returning it. The DPA has set the provision for demolition of the
rental space as assessed by Srithai Classic Home Company Limited.
6.12 Long-term Lease
The amounts due during the period from the statement of financial position date can be
summarized below:
Unit: Million
2017
2016
Within 1 year
1- 5 years
Within 1 year 1-5 years
Long-term lease and service
provider contract for utilities 19.49
59.74
19.17
79.22
Total
19.49
59.74
19.17
79.22
6.13 Initial capital
Section 10 of the Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E. 2551 (2008) specifies that the government
shall allocate an initial capital of up to 1 billion baht to the DPA. On April 29, 2008, the Cabinet granted
an approval to allocate a fund of 406.01 million baht to the Ministry of Finance, comprising preparation
expenses of 156.70 million baht and an initial capital of 249.31 million baht. In order to comply with the
Cabinet’s approval, the Bureau of the Budget allocated the expenditure budget for FY2008 to the Fiscal
Policy Office (FPO), comprising 242.31 million baht as initial capital and 121.79 million baht for
preparation expenses. The initial capital was fully disbursed by the FPO while 98.55 million baht was
disbursed as preparation expenses as shown in Note 6.14
6.14 Fund allocated by the government
The preparation expenses of 98.55 million baht were disbursed by the FPO in 2008 from the
fund allocated and approved by the Bureau of the Budget as shown in Note 6.13. An amount of 0.86
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million baht was recorded by the FPO as expenses and the FPO transferred purchased assets and funds
to the DPA amounting to 97.69 million baht as funds allocated by the government.
6.15 The Deposit Protection Fund
The Deposit Protection Fund comprises premiums remitted by financial institutions and
earnings of the Deposit Protection Fund. Pursuant to the DPA Board of Directors’ Notification on Rules
and Procedures for Calculating the Average Amount of Deposits and Categories of Protected Deposits B.E.
2555 (2012), dated June 26, 2012, Section 6(2), financial institutions shall remit two tranches of premiums
to the Deposit Protection Fund each year; the first tranche is for the period of January-June and the
second tranche is for the period of July-December. The remittance shall be made within the last
business day of July of the same year and the last business day of January of the following year,
respectively. (Note 6.3)
6.15.1 Financial position of the Deposit Protection Fund
Statements of financial position as of December 31
Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
12.61
11.33
Temporary investments
8,050.07
28,603.33
Premiums receivable from financial institutions
613.28
591.26
Receivables and accrued income
898.31
907.72
Total current assets
9,574.27
30,113.64
Non-current assets
Long-term investments
110,580.46
86,487.63
Total non-current assets
110,580.46
86,487.63
Total assets
120,154.73
116,601.27
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Payables and accrued expenses
120.32
Other current liabilities
5.10
4.95
Total liabilities
125.42
4.95
Equity
Deposit Protection Fund
120,029.31
116,596.32
Total equity
120,029.31
116,596.32
Total liabilities and equity
120,154.73
116,601.27
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6.15.2 Fund Management Fee
Section 47, Paragraph 3 (3) of the Deposit Protection Act B.E. 2551 (2008) mandates
that money from the Deposit Protection Fund can be used to pay fund management fees in accordance
with the Board of Directors’ rules. Thus, the Board issued the DPA Regulation on Deposit Protection Fund
Management Fee B.E. 2556 (2013) with the effective date of January 1, 2013 onwards.
6.16 Allocation for emergency operations
Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
Beginning balance
150.00
150.00
Add Additional allocation
Total
150.00
150.00
In this period, the DPA has not allocated the Deposit Protection Fund’s earnings for emergency
operations as referred to in Note 6.18.
6.17 Allocation for operations during a financial crisis
Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
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Beginning balance
3,321.98
2,343.98
Add Additional allocation
284.00
978.00
Total
3,605.98
3,321.98
In this period, the DPA has allocated the Deposit Protection Fund’s earnings for operations
during a financial crisis as referred to in Note 6.18.
6.18 Allocation of the Deposit Protection Fund’s earnings
Pursuant to the Section 48 of the Deposit Protection Agency Act B.E. 2551 (2008), the DPA
Board of Directors shall allocate to the DPA each year a specified amount of money not exceeding half
of net earnings from the Deposit Protection Fund, after deduction of the fund management fee in
accordance with Section 47 Paragraph 3 (3).
In DPA Board Meeting No. 9/2017 on September 26, 2017, the DPA Board of Directors resolved
to approve the allocation of 636.00 million baht from the Fund’s earnings in 2016, comprising 352.00
million baht for the DPA’s normal operations and 284.00 million baht for operations during a financial
crisis.
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6.19 Personnel expenses

Rent
Utility expenses
Repair and maintenance expenses
Audit fees and other fees
Outsourcing service contract fees
Network rental fees and other service fees
Project development expenses and consultant Fees
Public Relation Expenses
Meeting and entertainment expenses
Membership fees
Vehicle Expenses
Donations
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total
6.21 Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Executives

Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
21.54
21.33
2.67
2.84
8.01
5.52
1.95
1.34
5.98
5.89
4.80
4.92
8.24
10.01
11.66
11.33
1.45
1.07
0.74
0.75
0.97
0.87
1.25
1.67
1.61
1.60
70.87
69.14
Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016

Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Executives
Remuneration of the Board of Directors
and Sub-Committees
Salary and short-term benefits of executives
Travelling expenses, training and development
expenses
Other expenses
Total

6.03
5.72

6.67
6.14

0.35
0.04
12.14

0.32
0.04
13.17
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Salaries, rewards, and other compensation
Contributions to the provident fund
Other employee benefits
Training and development expenses
Work-related travel expenses
Total
6.20 Operating expenses

Unit: Million Baht
2017
2016
97.36
87.85
9.14
8.59
13.19
10.38
5.59
7.62
1.63
0.93
126.91
115.37
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6.21 Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Executives (continued)
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Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Executives comprises the remuneration of
directors and key executives, which refer to those who are directly or indirectly mandated and
responsible for planning, directing, and controlling any activities involving with DPA.
6.22 The impact of the changes in accounting policies
The DPA has changed its accounting policies regarding the preparation of financial statements
(Note 3) by reporting the results of the Deposit Protection Fund’s operations as a part of the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The DPA retroactively restated the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the statement of cash flows for the year ended December
31, 2016, for comparison as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
As previously
Adjustments
Restated
reported
Statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2016
Deposit Protection Agency (DPA)'s performance
Revenues
Fund management fee
57.74
57.74
Expenses
Personnel Expenses
88.35
27.02
115.37
Operating Expenses
81.16
21.49
105.65
Remuneration of the Board
of Directors and Executives 6.94
6.23
13.17
Statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2016
Deposit Protection Fund (DPF)'s performance
Revenues
Premiums from financial
institutions
1,180.62
1,180.62
Interest income
3,249.12
3,249.12
Expenses
Fund management fee
57.74
57.74
Allocation of the DPF’s earnings
to the DPA
1,321.00
1,321.00
Finance costs
6.27
6.27
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6.22 The impact of the changes in accounting policies (continued)

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
1,245.60
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash from (used in) operating activities
Interest income
(100.27)
Finance costs
Interest received
152.29
Interest paid
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Premiums receivable
from financial institutions
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for investment
in government bonds
(2,908.42)
Cash flows from financing activities
Deposit Protection Fund
3,360.61

Adjustments

3,044.73

4,290.33

(3,076.21)
6.27
3,579.62
(6.27)

(3,176.48)
6.27
3,731.91
(6.27)

(15.50)

(15.50)
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(172.03)
(3,360.61)

(3,080.45)
-

6.23 Reclassification
The comparisons presented in the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2016 reclassified certain items in order to compare with the financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017, with no impact on the statement of the financial position as previously reported.
The reclassification is shown as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Before
reclassification
Statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2016
Current Assets
Accrued interest income
Receivables and accrued income
Other current assets

952.48
1.09

Reclassification

After
reclassification

(952.48)
952.88
(0.40)

952.88
0.69
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As previously
reported

Unit: Million Baht
Restated
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6.23 Reclassification (continued)
Before
reclassification
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Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
2.33
Accrued expenses
18.44
Payables and
accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
4.69
Non-current Liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
1.12
Statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2016
Deposit Protection Agency (DPA)'s financial performance
Expenses
Operating expenses
105.65
Depreciation and
amortization
Statement of cash flows

Reclassification

Unit: Million Baht
After
reclassification

(2.33)
(18.44)

-

22.53
(0.64)

22.53
4.05

(1.12)

-

(36.50)

69.15

36.50

36.50

for the year ended December 31, 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Withholding tax payable
(0.39)
0.39
Revenue department payables
(0.39)
(0.39)
Accounts payable
(0.03)
0.03
Other payable
(0.03)
(0.03)
Other non-current liabilities
0.96
(0.96)
Accrued rental expenses
0.96
0.96
6.24 Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the DPA president and authorized for issuance on
April 30, 2018.
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